
 

 

 
PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 

  
Thursday, June 9, 2022                                                                          Frankfort Village Hall        

6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 

 
1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Approval of Minutes of May 26, 2022 

 

4. Final Plat: Homestead Center 

Request: Approval of Final Plat of Resubdivision to create a two-lot commercial subdivision for 

Homestead Center. (PIN: 19-09-31-202-030-0000)  
 

5. Public Hearing:  170 Vail Drive – Exterior Materials Variation (Ref #103) 

Public Hearing Request: Building materials variation to allow non-masonry materials on the first floor of 

an existing home in conjunction with proposed first and second floor additions and exterior remodeling. 

Existing vinyl siding to be replaced with LP® Smart Siding.  (PIN: 19-09-21-208-031-0000)  
  

6. Workshop: 10841 W. Lincoln Highway – Proposed Retail Center 

Future Public Hearing Request: Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) upon annexation from E-R (Estate 

Residential) to B-2 (Community Business). Other: Plat of Annexation, Final Plat of Subdivision and Plat of 

Dedication to create a commercial retail center; possible variations required. (PIN: 19-09-20-300-007-0000)  

 

7. Workshop (2nd):  11031 W. Lincoln Highway – Everbrook Academy Preschool/Daycare  

Future Public Hearing Request:  Proposed Major Change to Planned Unit Development and a Special Use 

Permit for a daycare facility in the B4 Office District on Lot 1 in the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision 

(PIN: 19-09-20-301-055-0000).   

 

8. Workshop: 10211 W. Lincoln Highway – Rhumbar 

Future Public Hearing Request: Proposed Major Change to the Brookside Commons Office Centre 

Planned Unit Development for a proposed building addition and other exterior changes; Special Use 

Permit for a Full-Service Restaurant with liquor sales; and a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Seating in the 

B-4 Office District. (PIN: 19-09-21-304-021-0000)  
 

9. Public Comments 

 

10. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 

11. Other Business 

 

12. Attendance Confirmation (June 23, 2022) 

 

13. Adjournment 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 



 

Page 2 

All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 

shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 

items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 

persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 

forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             1 

MINUTES 
MEETING OF VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT 

PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
        MAY 26, 2022–VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING    
 432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 

 
 
Call to Order: Chair Rigoni called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
Commissioners Present: Chair Maura Rigoni, Dan Knieriem, Will Markunas, 

Nichole Schaeffer, Jessica Jakubowski, Brian James 
 
 
 Commissioners Absent: David Hogan 
  
Staff Present: Director of Community and Economic Development 

Mike Schwarz, Senior Planner, Christopher Gruba 
 
Elected Officials Present:  None 
 
 
A. Approval of the Minutes from May 12, 2022  

 
Motion (#1): Approval of the minutes, as presented, from May 12, 2022 

 
Motion by:  Knieriem Seconded by: Jakubowski 
 
Approved: (4-0, Knieriem and Markunas abstained) 
 

 
B. Plat Approval: Lots 4, 5 & 6 Original Town of Frankfort – Gutschenritter 

Resubdivision 
 

Chris Gruba summarized the staff report. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the applicant to approach the podium. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked the applicant if he owns the middle lot. 
 
The applicant responded that he currently owns all three lots. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked the applicant what is the purpose of the request. 
 
The applicant responded that he intends to create a larger lot for himself and then sell 
the other property to the south as a larger lot. 
 
There was some discussion about the existing gazebo which straddles a lot line. 
 

 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             2 

Commissioner Schaeffer asked why the proposed lot areas are slightly different. The 
proposed Lot 1 is 9,380 square feet and the proposed Lot 2 is 9,388 square feet.  
 
The applicant responded that these three existing lots were part of the Original Town of 
Frankfort Subdivision and the past surveying methods were not exact, so there are very 
slight deviations in terms of the angles of the lot lines as they were originally platted. 
 
There was additional discussion regarding the setback of the existing gazebo to the 
proposed new northern lot line of Lot 1.  Chair Rigoni stated that the PC/ZBA will not 
take any action regarding the setback of the existing gazebo. 
 
Commissioner James asked the applicant if there are any trees that will be impacted. 
 
The applicant responded that no trees will be impacted by the proposed resubdivision. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there were any questions or comments from anyone in the 
audience even though this is not a public hearing.  There was no response. 

 
Motion (#2): Motion to recommend that the Village Board approve the Preliminary 
and Final Plat of Subdivision for Walnut Street Subdivision, subject to any necessary 
technical revisions prior to recording. 

 
Motion by: Markunas Seconded by:  Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (6-0) 

 
 

C. Public Hearing (Continued from April 28th, 2022): Olde Stone Subdivision 1st 
Addition (Ref #108)  
 
Staff noted that this would be the final time that this item would be tabled.  If a revised 
plan is not brought forth at the June 23rd Plan Commission meeting, the public hearing 
would be re-noticed in the newspaper and the applicant asked to re-send public hearing 
notices to all property owners within 250’.  
 
Motion (#3): Motion to table to June 23, 2022. 

 
Motion by:  Markunas Seconded by:  Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (6-0) 

 
 

D. Public Hearing: 8531 W. Lincoln Highway – Oasis Assisted Living (Ref #104) 
 

Motion (#4): Motion to table to June 9, 2022. 
 

Motion by: Markunas  Seconded by:  Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (6-0) 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             3 

 
E. Public Hearing:  19948 Lily Court – Gale Residence (Ref #105) 

 
Chair Rigoni swore in the applicant Patrick Gale.  
 
Chris Gruba summarized the staff report. 

 
Chair Rigoni asked the applicant to come to the podium. 
 
The applicant, Patrick Gale approached the podium.  He restated the nature and purpose 
of his request.  He stated that currently the sun covers every square foot of his back yard 
by 2:30 p.m.  Mr. Gale noted that Commissioner Knieriem did come out last week to 
assess the space. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the Commission if there were any initial questions from the PC/ZBA. 
 
There was no response. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak on the request. 
 
There was no response. 
 

Motion (#5): Motion to close the public hearing. 
 

Motion by: Schaeffer Seconded by: Jakubowski 
 
Approved: (6-0) 

 
Chair Rigoni informed the applicant she was able to visit the site and view the back yard 
from the fence. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the Commission if there were any questions from the PC/ZBA. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem stated that he was initially against the original variation request 
but has changed his position. 
 
Commissioner Schaeffer thanked the applicant for amending his variation request and 
stated that she supports this amended request. 
 
Commissioner Markunas thanked the applicant and stated that that he has also changed 
his position. 

 
Commissioner James stated that he is in similar agreement with the other comments. 
 
Chair Rigoni stated that she believes the motion will need to be clarified even though it 
refers to a rear yard addition.  She added that there is a reason that we have these 
regulations. 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             4 

Chair Rigoni stated that the motion will be clarified to refer to an “attached, covered 
unenclosed patio.” 

 
Motion (#6): Motion to recommend that the Village Board approve a variation from 
Article 6, Section B, Part 1 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit the 
construction of a rear yard addition in the form of an attached, covered, unenclosed 
patio, set back 17’ 3” from the rear property line, whereas 30’ is required in the R-2 
zone district, for the property located at 19948 Lily Court in accordance with the 
submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 

 
Motion by: Knieriem  Seconded by: Markunas 
 
Approved: (5-1, Rigoni voted no) 

 
 

F. Public Hearing: 9093 W. Fey Drive – Proposed Pickleball Building (Ref #106) 
 
Chair Rigoni swore in the applicant Anthony Villa. 
 
Chris Gruba summarized the staff report. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the applicant if he had anything to add to the staff report. 
 
Anthony Villa stated that he did not. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the Commission if there were any initial questions from the PC/ZBA. 
 
There was no response. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there was anyone in the audience wishing to speak on the request. 
 
There was no response. 
 
Motion (#7): Motion to close the public hearing. 

 
Motion by: Markunas Seconded by: Jakubowski  
 
Approved: (6-0) 

 
Chair Rigoni asked if the PC/ZBA members have any questions. 
 
Commissioner Markunas asked why the outdoor courts were removed.  
 
Anthony Villa responded that these were removed from the Site Plan as recommended by 
the Plan Commission at the April 28th workshop. 
 
Commissioner Schaeffer asked about the storage on the mezzanine. 
 
Anthony Villa responded that this area will be used for storage of equipment associated 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             5 

with the facility. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem had no further questions, but he did ask staff if they could, in the 
future, obtain building elevation drawings in color from the applicant.  
 
Chair Rigoni stated that she wants it to be understood that the HVAC units must be 
screened if they are ever added later.  Also, for staff, she normally doesn’t get into the 
weeds on Photometrics Plans but asked staff if this is meeting Code.  She stated her 
concern regarding an area of the parking lot that may not have enough lighting for 
security.    
 
Chris Gruba responded that the proposed lighting now meets Code.  
 
The applicant stated that they have reduced the lighting but can increase the dark area of 
the parking lot if so requested.  
 
Commissioner James asked what is the purpose of the overhead doors.  Do they plan to 
use these to move air flow?  The applicant responded yes that is what the overhead doors 
will be used for. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowski asked why no HVAC is being proposed. 
 
The applicant stated that this will be a mostly winter use.  If they are successful they may 
add HVAC in the future. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked staff if the applicant is requesting hours of operation beyond the 
Village requirements. 
 
Chris Gruba responded that they are not. 
 
Chris Gruba asked if the PC/ZBA wanted to add a condition prohibiting tournaments. 
 
There was some discussion regarding whether such a condition is necessary given the 
scale of the building with only four indoor courts.  There was consensus that such a 
condition is not necessary given that pickleball is not a spectator sport.  Instead, the 
Commission asked Mr. Villa to state for the record that there would be no tournaments 
held at this location.  He replied that there would be no tournaments.  
 
Motion (#8): Motion to recommend to the Village Board to approve the special use 
permit for an indoor recreation facility, in accordance with the reviewed plans, 
findings of fact, and public testimony, conditioned on the submittal of a revised 
landscape plan, that any future mechanical units shall be screened from view, that the 
trash enclosure gate shall be vinyl and opaque (not chain link) and obtaining final 
engineering approval. 

 
Motion by: Markunas Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (6-0) 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             6 

 
G. Workshop: 20801 S. La Grange Road – Chase Bank  

 
Chris Gruba summarized the staff report. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the applicant if she had anything to add to the staff report. 
 
Susan Faber with Black and Veatch on behalf of the applicant approached the podium 
and stated that she was local and could answer any questions. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked if this (rooftop solar panels) was a nationwide initiative 
for Chase Bank. 
 
Nationwide over 700 locations, in Illinois over 60 locations will also have such rooftop 
solar panels. 
 
Commissioner James asked if they have looked at other technology that sits closer to the 
roof and does not look like solar panels. 
 
Susan Faber responded that she has not looked at other technology. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowski asked what impact this will have on energy savings. 
 
Susan Faber responded that she does not have that information but can provide it for the 
next meeting. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowski asked if the solar panels can be painted to match the color of 
the shingles or if future shingles can be changed to match the solar panels. 
 
There was some discussion about the colors on the roof. 
 
Susan Faber stated that with most new technology it sticks out visually at first but then 
we become accustomed to it over time. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem stated that he doesn’t have as much concern about the visibility 
of the rooftop solar panels as other commissioners.  He suggested that maybe there is an 
opportunity to relocate some panels to other sides of the roof. 
 
Chair Rigoni stated that this is one of the nicest buildings in town and we pride ourselves 
on the architecture in the community.  She asked Ms. Faber if there a hybrid possibility 
with the other alternative technology? 
 
Commissioner Jakubowski stated that maybe there is an opportunity to blend the colors 
on the roof a little more. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem reiterated that maybe they can come up with other options to 
address the visibility. 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             7 

Commissioner James stated that they should paint some of the metal-colored conduit that 
is exposed to match the roof material colors. 
 
Susan Faber asked about timing of next steps. 
 
Chris Gruba responded. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked Ms. Faber to come back with answers to the questions that have been 
raised this evening. 
 

H. Workshop: 20879 S. La Grange Road – Facen4Ward event space 
 
Chris Gruba summarized the staff report. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the applicants they had anything to add to the staff report. 
 
The applicant, Kristen Facen approached the podium and provided an overview of the 
proposed business.  She stated that the lease is under review by her attorney and she will 
be funding the improvements to the space.  There should be no parking issue.  They are 
not seeking a liquor license.  She noted that her application incorrectly stated that the 
business would be closed on Thursdays and that it would be open from 10 am – 9 pm.  
 
Chair Rigoni asked the PC/ZBA members if they had any questions. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowki asked the applicant if each event will have a chaperone. 
 
Kristen Facen responded yes. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowksi asked how may events they will have per week.  
 
Kristen Facen responded that she envisions 1-2 events during the week and up to 4 events 
on the weekends. 
 
Commissioner James sated that he sees a potential concern about the number of toilets 
for up to 75 people.  He asked if there will be any issues with loitering. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if one event contract will take up the entire space. 
 
Kristen Facen responded yes. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there will be any bands. 
 
Kristen Facen responded that there will not be any bands, but music is typically provided 
with a Bluetooth speaker. 
 
Commissioner Markunas offered his congratulations on the applicant starting a new 
business.  He said that a lot of his questions were answered by the applicant’s overview 
of the project.  He sated that it sounds like any loitering concerns will be monitored.  He 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             8 

does think the restrooms will be a Building Code issue. 
 
Commissioner Schaeffer thanked the applicant for providing such detailed information.  
She asked if there will be any outdoor seating and if a bench would require a special use. 
 
Chris Gruba responded that an exterior change such as a bench should be included as part 
of the special use permit request when it proceeds to a public hearing.  However, the 
applicant noted that she was not seeking to install any exterior benches.  
 
There was some discussion about the potential impacts on the neighboring businesses. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem stated that he does have a concern about how noise and music 
will impact the adjacent businesses. 
 
Kristen Facen responded that they will speak with the neighboring businesses. 
 
Commissioner Schaeffer offered that maybe they could look into some sound insulation 
or acoustic mitigation measures for the neighboring businesses. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked the applicant if they have done these types of events 
before. 
 
Kristen Facen responded that they have done these events all over the area including in 
Indiana. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked if the second story shown on the photo on the screen is a 
faux second story. 
 
Chari Rigoni responded that it is a faux second story.  
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked who will provide the food for the events. 
 
Kristen Facen responded that the events will be catered. 
 
Chair Rigoni stated that there should be no issues as far as needing Will County Health 
Department approval. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked the applicant if she had any other questions. 
 
Kristen Facen responded no. 
 

I. Workshop:  9350 W. Laraway Road – Savana Expedited LLC – Special Use Permits 
for a Truck Terminal and Automobile (Truck/Trailer) Repair 
 

Mike Schwarz summarized the staff report. 
 

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant is she had anything to add to the staff report. 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             9 

The applicant, Kristina Vlastelica, and her project engineer, Aurimas Spucys of Morris 
Engineering approached the podium. 
 

Aurimas Spucys stated that the truck and trailer maintenance repair will not include any 
painting or body shop work.  He stated that they were caught off guard by the Will County 
Department of Transportation request for 25 feet of additional right-of-way.  He added 
that the proposed stormwater detention ponds were oversized by 25 percent so hopefully 
they should be able to mitigate the loss of additional property.  
 

Commissioner Jakubowski asked the applicant how large is the fleet of vehicles for the 
business. 
 
Kristina Vlastelica responded that they have 25 trucks and 25 trailers, but not all of 
these will be on site at the same time.  They are out on the road. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowski asked the applicant how much traffic they anticipate. 
 
The applicant responded that the lot will usually be lightly occupied as they do not 
make money if the trucks are parked. 
 
Commissioner James thanked the applicant for taking on this building which has fallen 
into disrepair. 
 
Commissioner James asked if there are any refrigerated trucks. 
 
Kristina Vlastelica responded that there will only be food grade trucks.  There will not 
be any refrigerated trucks. 
 
Commissioner Markunas stated that a lot of his questions were answered as far as the 
nature of the trucking operation.  He suggested that the applicants try not to seek any 
variations if possible. 
 
Commissioner Schaeffer asked what will happen to the concrete blocks shown in the 
photos around the back of the property near Ontario Street. 
 
Aurimas Spucys responded that they will be removed from the site. 
 
Commissioner Schaeffer asked what will happen to the wing walls of the building. 
 
Aurimas Spucys responded that they will be repaired. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked how long the owner has owned the property.  Why 
hasn’t the property been kept up since that time? 
 
Aurimas Spucys stated that over the past 18 months they have been trying to get 
permits but cannot do so with the special uses being approved.  Some of that time has 
been due to his design of the plans and not just the Village staff review. 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             10 

Commissioner Knieriem asked what is the current use of the property. 
 
Kristina Vlastelica responded that they have some office use and there are a few trucks 
there. 
 
Commissioner Knieriem asked that in the meantime as they are going through the 
zoning process, they should start cleaning up the property as long as no permits are 
necessary for the work. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked how many truck docks are associated with the proposed use. 
 
The applicant responded that there are four existing docks and three more overhead 
doors are proposed. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked how many service bays are proposed.  She asked that staff confirm 
that for the public hearing. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there is any plan to rent out yard space. 
 
Kristina Vlastelica responded that there is not any plan to rent out yard space. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if the landscaping will be on the inside of the fence or on the 
outside of the fence. 
 
The project engineer responded with the question “which do you prefer?” 
 
Chair Rigoni stated that this project is an opportunity to spruce up this end of Ontario 
Street.  She asked that there should be landscaping on both sides of the fence. 
 
Commissioner Markunas asked the applicant where the drivers park long term. 
 
Kristina Vlastelica responded that they do not park their personal vehicles on the site. 
 
Chair Rigoni stated that the PC/ZBA can place a condition that there shall be no 
overnight parking by truck drivers.  Or at least no running trucks overnight. 
 
The applicant stated that there are existing truck/travel stops in the area that provide 
food, showers, etc. so there is no need for nor will there be any overnight parking by 
their truck drivers. 
 
There was some discussion about the staging of vehicles and the desire to have no 
trucks parked on the public streets. 
 
Mike Schwarz responded that the PC/ZBA could add a condition for no off-site 
parking for this project but that a broader “no parking” restriction for all of Ontario 
Street would need to be reviewed by the Traffic Committee. 
 
Commissioner Jakubowksi asked about the hours that trucks will be coming and going. 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             11 

 
Kristina Vlastelica provided a summary of how their operation works. 
 
Chair Rigoni asked if there was anyone in the audience wanting to speak. 
 
John Brooks who lives in Lakeview Estates approached the podium. He stated that has 
a concern about increased truck traffic in the area. 
 
The applicant stated that GPS routes the trucks to the site.   
 
Chair Rigoni stated that there is an anticipation that all trucks will only come in and 
out via Ontario Street. 
 
Aurimas Spucys explained that the turning radius for trucks to and from Laraway Road 
may be impacted by the Will County right-of-way dedication.  Therefore, most of their 
trucks will enter and exit via the proposed Ontario Street access. 
 
There was some discussion about the routing of trucks to and from the existing and 
proposed access points. 
 
The applicant and her project engineer thanked the Plan Commission members for 
their time and they will be in touch with Village staff to address the comments they 
have received.  
 

B. Public Comments 
 
 Chair Rigoni noted that there were no members of the public remaining in attendance 
so there were no other public comments.  

 
C. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
Schwarz noted that the Special Use requests for 14 Hickory Street 14 B (Studio 
C/Frankfort Arts Association) and 21218 S. La Grange (StretchLab) were each 
approved by the Village Board at its meeting on May 16th, 2022.  He also noted that 
an offer of employment for the Planner position was made and accepted this week.  
The new Planner is scheduled to start on June 6th.    

 
D. Other Business 

 
Chair Rigoni noted that there was no other business.  

 
E. Attendance Confirmation (June 9, 2022) 

Chair Rigoni asked the Commissioners to notify staff if they will not be in attendance 
on June 9th.  
 

Motion (#9): Adjournment 9:26 p.m. 
 
Motion by: Markunas           Seconded by: Schaeffer 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 26, 2022                                                             12 

 
Unanimously approved by voice vote. 
 
Approved June 9, 2022 
 
As Presented _____ As Amended _____ 
 
_____________________ /s/Maura Rigoni, Chair 
 
_____________________ s/ Secretary 



Staff Report: Homestead Center – Final Plat 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                        June 9, 2022 

 
Project: Homestead Commercial  
Meeting Type:  Plat Approval  
Request: Plat approval of a two-lot commercial subdivision  
Location:   Southwest Corner of Wolf and Laraway Roads 
Applicant:  Brianne Development, Inc. 
Prop. Owner:  Brianne Development, Inc.  
Representative: Applicant  
 
Site Details 
 

Lot Size: ±4.52 Acres                                                           Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 19-09-31-202-030-0000 
Existing Zoning:  B-2 
Prop.  Zoning: N/A   
Lots: 2 lots (proposed) 
 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property Vacant    General Comm. B-2 

North Commercial General Comm. B-2/R-2 

South Residential  Single Fam. Res. R-2 

East Undeveloped General Comm. B-2 

West Residential  Single Fam. Res. R-2 

 
Project Summary  
 

On November 2, 2020, the Village Board passed two ordinances approving a PUD for a 9,600 square-foot shopping 
center and a Special Use Permit for outdoor seating (ordinances 3270 & 3271).   A final plat for the project was 
approved later by the Village Board on September 20, 2021, to create a two-lot commercial subdivision for 
Homestead Commercial.  The applicant is now seeking changes to the final plat in order to reroute some of the 
underground utilities.   The only change from the formerly approved plan is the addition of a 10’ wide public utility 
and drainage easement along the east property line.  The changes are requested to reroute the watermain.  

The building that was approved is being constructed on Lot 1.   As the project for this parcel was approved as a PUD, 
any proposed building for Lot 2 would have to return to the Plan Commission for review under a Major PUD change.  

Attachments 
• Final Plat, received by staff 5.31.22 
• Aerial Photograph, prepared by Staff, dated 1.2.20 
• Formerly approved site plan, floorplan, landscape plan and building elevations approved on 

11.2.20 (for reference only) 
 
 



Staff Report: Homestead Center – Final Plat 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the requests, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 

• The B-2 zone district requires a minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet (0.46 acres).  Lot 1 
measures 2.03 acres and Lot 2 measures 2.14 acres, meeting this requirement.  
 

• The final plat illustrates cross-access, public utility & drainage easements, with dimensions noted 
on the plat.   
 

• The final plat has been reviewed by the Utility Department as well as the Village’s engineering 
consultant for accuracy of public utility and drainage easements, the cross-access easements and 
other housekeeping items.  
 

 
Affirmative Motions 

 
1. Recommend the Village Board approve the final plat for Homestead Center in accordance with 

the reviewed plans and public testimony, subject to any necessary technical revisions prior to 
recording.   



 

S W
OL

F R
D

STOLL RD

W LARAWAY RD

CEDARWOOD CT

AS
TE

R 
DR

HU
GH

ES
 S

T

CEDARWOOD DR

JEANETTE CT

HINSPETER DR

ROSEMARY RD

µ Print Date: 1/2/2020

Homestead Commercial

















cgruba
Received





1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                           June 9, 2022 

 
Project: LaMarche Residence First and Second Floor Additions and Exterior Remodeling 
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing 
Request(s): Request for a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 2(g)(2) of the Village of Frankfort 

Zoning Ordinance to permit the use of non-masonry siding on the first floor of an existing 
home in conjunction with proposed first and second floor additions and exterior remodeling 
in the R-2 Single-Family Residential District located at 170 Vail Drive 

Location: 170 Vail Drive 
Applicant:  William and Stacey LaMarche 
Prop. Owner:  Same as above  
Consultants:  Gabe Garcia, Ideal Designs; Richard Vane, MG2A   
Representative: None  
Report By:  Michael J. Schwarz, AICP 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 14,410 SF                                                              Figure 1: Location Map  

PIN(s):          19-09-21-208-031-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2, Single-Family Detached Residential 
Prop.  Zoning: N/A   
Building(s) / Lot(s): 1 buildings / 1 lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Single-family Residential    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

North  Single-family Residential 
 

Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

South Open Space   Environmental 
Conservation 

B-2 

East Single-family Residential    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

West Stormwater Detention    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicants, William and Stacey LaMarche, are seeking to add first and second floor additions and remodel the 
exterior of their two-story home located at 170 Vail Drive.  The applicants are requesting a variation from Article 6, 
Section B, Part 2(g)(2) of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit the use of non-masonry siding on the 
first floor on a proposed addition in the R-2 Single-Family Residential District.   

In summary, the applicants intend to construct a 490 square-foot addition on the first floor at the rear of the house 
and an 872 square-foot addition on the second floor of the house.  According to the Building Data information on 
Sheet T-1 of the architectural plans, the existing house contains 2,682 square feet of floor area including the 843 
square-foot basement (the Frankfort Township Assessor property information indicates that the existing house 
contains a gross living area of 1,792 square feet).  The existing exterior brick at the front entry would remain but 
would be repainted.  Eight sets of front window shutters would be removed as well as a decorative hexagonal Fypon 
located below the front gable.  The existing front door and garage door will be replaced.  The existing asphalt shingle-
roof would be replaced with a new asphalt shingle roof with the exception that several new smaller roofed areas 
would be added, including over two second-story sets of windows on the front elevation, over the front entry and 



2 

over the garage door.  The existing first floor vinyl siding would be replaced with horizontally hung LP® Smart Siding 
which is a fiber cement board product.  The existing second floor vinyl siding would be replaced with vertically hung 
board and batten siding.  Proposed changes to the rear of the house include removal of the brick chimney, 
replacement of existing windows and additional new windows, a new first-floor gable over the rear entry, and a new 
second-story gable over new double-hung windows.  

Attachments 

• Applicant Findings for Variation Standards  
• 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
• Photographs from site visit on June 1, 2022 
• Engineering Site Plan dated May 25, 2022 and received May 25, 2022 
• Architectural Plans dated April 28, 2022 and received April 28, 2022 
• PC/ZBA Evaluation Form for Variation Findings of Fact 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the requests, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 

• The following table is provided to compare the subject property with the R-2 District dimensional and other 
standards: 

 
 R-2 Single-Family 

Detached Residential 
District Requirement 

 
Subject Property 

 
Comments 

Minimum Lot Size (square feet)  
(Single-Family Dwelling) 

15,000 SF 14,410 SF  Platted as Lot 47 in 
Creekview Unit 2 
Subdivision (1977), the 
subject lot is legally non-
conforming with respect 
to area 

Minimum Lot Width (Feet) 100 feet 102 feet 
(approximate) 

 

Minimum Lot Depth 150 feet 130 feet 
(approximate) 

Platted as Lot 47 in 
Creekview Unit 2 
Subdivision (1977), the 
subject lot is legally non-
conforming with respect 
to lot depth 

Minimum Required Yards (feet) 
• Front 
• Side 
• Rear 

 
• 30 feet 
• Total 25 feet; 

min. 10 feet 
on any side 

• 30 feet 

 
• 30 feet 
• Total 38.8 

feet; 12 feet 
on east side 

• 39.5 feet 

 

Maximum Height (feet) 35 feet 28 feet, 6 inches  
Maximum Lot Coverage 20% (for a Two-Story) 11% existing 

17.5% proposed 
 

Maximum Impervious Coverage 40% 23% existing  
(3,290 SF) 
25% proposed  
(3,640 SF) 

 

Maximum Rear Yard Coverage 30% 0%  
Minimum Gross Floor Area 
(square feet, includes basement) 

2,600 (for a two-story) 2,682 SF existing 
4,044 SF proposed 

 



3 

Minimum Basement Size 80% of the ground floor 
area (80% of 1,640 SF = 
1,312 SF) 

 
843 SF 

Existing basement area 
is legally non-
conforming 

 
• Although previous Village approvals of variation requests do not set any precedent, the following 

information is provided as background information.  On October 5, 2015, the Village Board approved a 
similar request for a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 2(g)(2) of the Village of Frankfort Zoning 
Ordinance to permit the use of non-masonry siding on the first floor of an existing home for the Claudette 
Lesiak residence located at 595 Vail Drive, which is five houses north of the subject property, on the 
opposite side of the street (Ordinance No. 2989).  In that case the owners desired to replace the existing 
cedar plywood siding with vinyl siding.  At the September 24, 2016 Plan Commission / Zoning Board of 
Appeals meeting, a motion was made and seconded to recommend that the Village Board approve a 
building materials variance to permit the use of Crane Board, solid core, board and batten style vinyl siding 
on the home located at 595 Vail Drive in accordance with the reviewed plans and public testimony 
(approved 4-1).   
 

Standards for Variations  
 

The applicants are requesting a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 2(g)(2) of the Village of Frankfort Zoning 
Ordinance to permit the use of non-masonry siding on the first floor of an existing home in conjunction with 
proposed first and second floor additions and exterior remodeling. 

For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request.  
 

a. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not vary the provisions of this Ordinance as authorized in this Article 3, 
Section B, unless they have made findings based upon the evidence presented to it in the following cases:  

 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 

conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  
 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances;  
 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 

b. For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals, in making this 
determination, whenever there are practical difficulties or hardships, shall also take into consideration the 
extent to which the following facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by the evidence:  

 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 

involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, 
if the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

 
2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, generally, 

to other property within the same zoning classification;  
 

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 
the property;  
 

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an interest 
in the property;  
 

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  
 



4 

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood;  
 

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, substantially 
increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially diminish or impair 
property values within the neighborhood.  

 
Affirmative Motion    

For the Commission’s consideration, staff is providing the following potential affirmative motion.  

1. Recommend that the Village Board approve the request for a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 2(g)(2) 
of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit the use of non-masonry siding on the first floor of an 
existing home in conjunction with proposed first and second floor additions and exterior remodeling in the 
R-2 Single-Family Residential District located at 170 Vail Drive, in accordance with the submitted plans, 
public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 

 
 

     



Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Standards of Variation 

Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that  
the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request. The Zoning Board of Appeals  
must answer the following three findings favorable to the applicant based upon the evidence provided.  
To assist the Zoning Board of Appeals in their review of the variation request(s), please provide responses 
to the following “Standards of Variation.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  

1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under  
the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  

Yes, the property can yield a substantial return 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances; and  

There are no hardship for the request of the variance. We are just trying to create more aesthetics 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.   

No, it will not alter and add character to the neighborhood and area 

For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals also determines if  
the following seven facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by the evidence. Please  
provide responses to the following additional “Standards of Variation.”  

1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 
involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if 
the strict letter of the regulations was carried out; 

Yes due to overall costs, time and lack of being waterproof of brick. 

mschwarz
Received



2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable,  
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;  

Potentially, but I cannot truly answer this.  We are requesting due to the adaptability
brick has with the intense weather the Midwest throws at us. Between chipping, cost 
of repairs, the mold potential (which my daughter and I are allergic too), composite 
makes more sense for our family home. 

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more 
money out of the property;  

No, this home is being renovated to be our forever home 

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having 
an interest in the property;  

Not at all

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly 
injurious to  other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is 
located;  

No, it will absolutely not affect any other home or property.

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not 
be so at  variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the 
structures already  constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate 
neighborhood or the character of the  applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation 
in the property values within the  neighborhood; or  

The requested changes to the interior and exterior of the home, has been appraised 
well over comps in the neighborhood, which will ultimately bring value to the 
neighborhood

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property,  
substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially  
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood. 

No we will be using composite, if approved which is also very fire resistant and 
weather durable



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.07

1: 2,257

0 Miles

Aerial Photo - 170 Vail Drive

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

5/27/2022 Date:

0.04

Address Points

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships







 
 

Standards of Variation Commissioner Evaluation Form 
 

Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that the Zoning Board of Appeals must use 
to evaluate every variation request. The Zoning Board of Appeals must answer the following three findings favorable to the applicant based upon 
the evidence provided.  
 

 STANDARD NOTES MEETS 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a 

reasonable return if permitted to be used only 
under the conditions allowed by the regulations 
in that zone;  

  
YES              NO 
 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique 
circumstances; 

  
YES              NO 
 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the 
essential character of the locality. 

  
YES              NO 
 

 
For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals also determines if the following seven facts, favorable to the 
applicant, have been established by the evidence.  
 

 STANDARD NOTES MEETS 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape 

or topographical conditions of the specific 
property involved will bring a particular 
hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from 
a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the 
regulations was carried out;  

  
 
YES              NO 
 



2. That the conditions upon which the petition for 
variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same 
zoning classification;  

  
YES              NO 
 

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based 
exclusively upon a desire to make more money 
out of the property;  

  
YES              NO 
 

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not 
been created by any person presently having an 
interest in the property;  

  
YES              NO 
 

5. That the granting of the variation will not be 
detrimental to the public welfare or unduly 
injurious to other property or improvements in 
the neighborhood in which the property is 
located;  

  
 
YES              NO 
 

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and 
functional plan of any proposed structure will 
not be so at variance with either the exterior 
architectural appeal and functional plan of the 
structures already constructed, or in the course 
of construction in the immediate neighborhood 
or the character of the applicable district, as to 
cause a substantial depreciation in the property 
values within the neighborhood; or  

  
 
 
 
YES              NO 
 

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an 
adequate supply of air to adjacent property, 
substantially increase the danger of fire, 
otherwise endanger the public safety or 
substantially diminish or impair property values 
within the neighborhood.  

  
 
YES              NO 
 

 

 

 



mschwarz
Received

















 1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA    June 9, 2022 

 
 
Project: Retail Center (former Abe Lincoln Motel) 
Meeting Type:  Workshop (preliminary) 
Requests (potential): Rezoning, Plat of Annexation, Final Plat of Subdivision and Plat of Dedication 
Location:   10841 W. Lincoln Highway 
Applicant:  Zaim Sakiri 
Prop. Owner:  Midwest Liberty Development, LLC 
 
Site Details 
 

Parcel Size: Approximately 2.4 acres                                 Figure 1. Location Map 
PIN: 19-09-20-300-007-0000 
Existing Zoning:  C-4 (County, Highway Commercial) 
Prop.  Zoning: B-2 (Community Business) 
Buildings / Lots: 1 building, 1 lot  
 
 
 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Undeveloped General Commercial C-4 (Cnty) 

North Forest Preserve Environmental 
Conservation 

Forest 
Preserve 

South  Single-Family Res Environmental 
Conservation 

A-1 (Cnty) 

East Undeveloped General Commercial A-1 (Cnty) 

West Single-Family 
Attached 

Single-Family 
Attached 

R-4 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant is proposing a 20,000 square foot retail building on an undeveloped parcel in unincorporated Will 
County (former Abe Lincoln Motel site).  The subject property is located in a small pocket of unincorporated land, 
surrounded by the Village.  The property itself is contiguous to the Village to the west.  Specific tenants have not 
been identified by the applicant at this time, but they are assumed to be retail in nature.  A drive-through is not 
proposed at this time.  The project would not be developed as a PUD, and one or several variances may be 
required as part of the project.  Approximately 60’ of frontage along Route 30 will need to be dedicated to right-of-
way for Route 30.  Hickory Creek Tributary 2 runs along the south property line and the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate 
Map indicates that a “Floodzone A” is located on the subject property and the adjacent property to the south.  Due 
to the presence of this floodzone and other factors, some engineering work has been performed by the applicant 
and reviewed by the Village’s engineering consultant.  The applicant is requesting a “preliminary” workshop 
meeting to discuss the project before devoting more resources toward further engineering review.  As such, not all 
of the required information (plans) has been provided at this time and staff is limited to providing a partial review 
of the project for consideration by the Plan Commission.   



 2 

Attachments 
1. 2019 Aerial photograph maps, Village of Frankfort GIS (1:5,000 scale and 1:1,500 scale) 
2. Zoning maps, Village of Frankfort GIS (1:5,000 scale and 1:8,000 scale) 
3. County tax map 
4. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FEMA) 
5. National Wetland Inventory map 
6. Preliminary Engineering Review #1, prepared by Robinson Engineering 3.25.22 
7. Pictures of site, taken by staff 5.27.22 
8. Color building renderings (not to scale), received 6.1.22 
9. Preliminary Engineering Plans, received 2.9.22 

 
Analysis 

 
As noted, the applicant is seeking preliminary input through a Plan Commission workshop prior to submitting a 
complete set of plans and obtaining preliminary engineering approval.   
 
Land Use 
 
The applicant is proposing to annex the land into the Village and rezone the property from the default E-R zone 
district (Estate Residential) to B-2 (Community Commercial).  The B-2 zone district lists many types of uses 
permitted by-right or with a Special Use Permit.  At this time, the applicant is proposing general retail sales for the 
entire building, which is permitted by-right.   
 
The Future Land Use Map within the Comprehensive Plan designates the property as “General Commercial”.  
General Commercial is intended for uses such as general retail at all scales, restaurants and offices.  As such, the 
most compatible zone districts include B-1 (Local Business), B-2 (Community Business), B-3 (General Business) and 
B-4 (Office).  An assessment of the nearby commercially-zoned property along Route 30 includes B-2 and B-4 
zoning.  The applicant is proposing a rezoning to B-2, which is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
property is also located at the intersection of a Regional Arterial Road (Route 30) and a Major Collector Road (108th 
Avenue), making a commercial use suitable.  
 
Annexation 
 

1. Annexation of the property into the Village for development as a retail building would require three 
actions by the Village Board and are approved through new ordinances:   
 

a) An ordinance authorizing execution of an annexation agreement 
b) An ordinance annexing certain land into the Village (approving the Plat of Annexation) 
c) An ordinance to rezone the property from the default E-R zone district to B-2, Community 

Business 
 

2. Ordinances a) and b) above only require action by the Village Board.  Ordinance c) above is first reviewed 
by the Plan Commission, which makes a recommendation to the Village Board for final action.  

 
Site Plan 
 
The size of the parcel is approximately 104,500 square feet (2.4 acres), after dedication of right-of-way for Route 
30.  The proposed building is 20,000 square feet, resulting in a lot coverage of 19.1%.  There is no maximum 
building coverage in the B-2 zone district.  As a corner lot, the shorter road frontage is considered the front yard, 
which in this case is 108th Avenue.  Route 30 is considered a corner side yard, the south property line is a side yard 
and the west property line is a rear yard.  
 
A summary of the dimensional standards is as follows.  The red text denotes a variance.  

 



 3 

B-2 Zone 
Lot Size (min 

SF) 

Front Yard 
Setback  

(East) 

Corner 
Side Yard 
Setback 
(North) 

Side Yard 
Setback 
(South) 

Rear Yard 
Setback 
(West) 

Front Yard 
Landscaping 

(East) 
Requirement 20,000 50’ 150’ 50’ 30’ 25’ 
Proposed 104,500* 50’ 150’* 70’* 58.5’ 23’ 

*Approximations   
 

1. As noted above, a variance would be required for the required 25’ front yard landscape buffer.  
 

2. A FEMA “Floodzone A” runs along the southern boundary of this site and on the adjacent property to the 
south.  Although some preliminary engineering has been performed, the proposed site plan may or may 
not be possible depending on the exact location of the floodzone.   The applicant is proposing a retaining 
wall near the southeast corner of the property, in order to elevate the parking lot above the floodzone.  A 
copy of the most recent review letter from Robinson Engineering has been included with this report.  

 
Traffic Circulation/Access 
 

1. The curb cuts from the former Abe Lincoln Motel are still in place.  A boulevard access drive is located on 
Route 30 and there are two separate access drives along 108th Avenue.   
 

2. The applicant is proposing to combine the boulevard entrance into a single driveway along Route 30 in 
the same general location.  Although this may be seen as an improvement by decreasing the number of 
access points along Route 30, the applicant has not received feedback from IDOT to date.  
 

3. The applicant is proposing to decrease the access points along 108th Avenue from two to one.  The 
existing southern access drive would be removed, while the existing northern access drive would be 
widened in the same general location as it exists today, to comply with current design standards.  The 
decrease of access points along 108th Avenue is an improvement, especially since the southern access 
drive is located within a designated FEMA “Floodzone A”.   
 

4. The location of the northern access drive was preliminarily reviewed by the Village’s engineering 
consultant.  There are no distance separation requirements from this access drive and Route 30 per the 
design standards.  However, IDOT may require a distance separation, even though 108th Avenue is a 
Village-owned Road.  Input has not been received from IDOT regarding this to date.   
 

5. Although not a requirement per the Design Standards, Village administration has requested that a partial 
turn lane be installed between Route 30 and the entrance along 108th Avenue to decrease traffic 
congestion when entering the site.  This partial turn lane is not reflected on the site plans included with 
the staff report.  
 

6. Traffic would be two-directional along the northern row of parking.  However, the other sides of the site 
would have one-direction traffic, circling the site in a counter-clockwise motion.  
 

Fire Protection 
 

1. A fire truck traffic circulation plan has been provided by the applicant and was reviewed at a preliminary 
level by the Frankfort Fire District.  The drive aisles along the west and south sides of the building must be 
at least 24’ wide, whereas 20’ is provided.  Also, an inside turning radius of 45 feet must be provided, to 
prevent fire trucks from traversing curbs.  Revisions to the plan are required to meet these requirements.  
Changes to the plan may result in additional comments from the Fire District.   
 

 
 



 4 

Parking 
 
The proposed tenants have not been identified at this time.  However, the B-2 zone district allows for various uses 
permitted by-right or permitted with a Special Use Permit.  The following is a list of potential, but not all, uses that 
are likely to occupy a speculative retail building along with the required parking for each:  
 

Use Parking Requirement 
Permitted 
or Special 
Use in B-2 

Convenience store 1 space for every 150 square feet of gross floor area.  Permitted 

Dry Cleaners 1 space for every 200 square feet of gross floor area, plus 1 
space for each employee during the largest working shift.  

Permitted 

Bakery/Grocery Stores 1 space for every 200 square feet of gross floor area plus 1 
space for each employee during the largest working shift. 

Permitted 

Indoor recreation and 
entertainment 

1 space for every 4 patrons based upon the maximum 
occupancy of the facility, plus 1 space for each employee 
during the largest working shift.  

Special Use 

Massage Establishment 1 space for each 200 square feet of gross floor area, plus 1 
space for each employee during the largest working shift.  

Special Use 

Microbrewery/Distillery/Winery 
with sampling area 

1 space for every 500 square feet of gross floor area dedicated 
to brewing & operations, plus 1 space for each 1,000 square 
feet of gross floor area dedicated to sampling area, retail 
display, customer seating and other non-production areas.  

Special Use 

Office, Business/professional 1 space for every 200 square feet of gross floor area.  Permitted 

Office, Health clinic 3 spaces for each exam room, plus 1 space for each employee 
during the largest working shift.  

Permitted 

Personal Service (salon, etc.) 1 space for each 200 square feet of gross floor area, plus 1 
space for each employee during the largest working shift.  

Permitted 

Restaurant (full service) 1 space for each 100 square feet of gross floor area, plus 1 
space for each employee during the largest working shift.  

Permitted 

Restaurant (carry out) 1 space for each 75 square feet of gross floor area, plus 1 for 
each 2 employees during the largest working shift.  

Special Use 

Restaurant (outdoor seating 
area) Same as the type of restaurant/tavern it serves.  Special Use 

Retail sales, under 100,000 SF 1 space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area, plus 1 
space for each employee during the largest working shift.  

Permitted 

 
The proposed building is 20,000 square feet in area.  Assuming a scenario that the entire building and all tenants 
were used for general retail sales as listed above, the use would require 80 parking spaces, plus 1 space for each 
employee during the largest working shift.  The site plan illustrates 118 parking spaces on-site, which would allow 
for a maximum of 38 employees within the building.   
 
It should be noted that most of the uses above, other than general retail, would increase the total parking 
requirement above 118 spaces and therefore not comply with the Ordinance.  Some of the more typical parking-
intensive uses include full-service and carry-out restaurants, convenience stores and salons.  
 
 
 



 5 

Loading 
 

1. At least one loading space is required for a retail building of this size.  The loading space must measure at 
least 12’ x 50’ and be located behind the building.  No loading spaces are illustrated on the plans, 
requiring a variance.   
   

Utilities 
 

1. The site is currently served by Village water, sanitary and storm utilities, formerly in place for the Abe 
Lincoln Motel.   
 

Stormwater Detention 
 

1. Per a cursory review by Robinson Engineering, on-site stormwater detention is required.  The applicant is 
proposing underground stormwater detention beneath the north row of parking and the south row of 
parking behind the building.  It appears that the stormwater will ultimately drain into the Hickory Creek 
Tributary 2 via a constrictor near the southeast corner of the property.  Preliminary engineering has not 
yet been approved for this project.  

 
Landscaping 
 

1. The site currently contains several mature trees and a tree survey prepared by a licensed arborist will be 
required.   
 

2. The Landscape Ordinance requires a 25’ landscape buffer (transition yard) between two incompatible 
uses.  The property is adjacent to residential uses to the west and south.  A 25’ landscape buffer has been 
provided along the south property line, but it appears that a 15’ landscape buffer is provided along the 
west property line adjacent to the existing Settler’s Pond townhome development.  Transition yards shall 
employ landscaping, fencing or both.  Since the Landscape Ordinance is separate from the Zoning 
Ordinance, a variance cannot be granted to permit a 15’ landscape buffer.  
 

3. The Landscape Ordinance requires street trees at a rate of 1 overstory tree for every 35’ of road frontage.  
These trees must be placed on private property within the landscape buffer areas.  The frontage along 
Route 30 would require 11 trees, while the frontage along 108th Avenue would require 8 trees.  These 
street trees should be illustrated on a revised landscape plan prior to a follow-up workshop.  

 
Building Materials/Architecture 
 
Article 7, Section A, Part 5 of the Zoning Ordinance lists the architectural requirements of the B-2 zone district.   
Although color architectural elevations have not been provided, some information can be gathered from the color 
renderings provided.   
 

1. The Zoning Ordinance states that new construction with the B-2 zone district be “original and unique”.  
The front and sides of the building appear to be mostly brick and cultured stone veneer with glass 
storefronts.  Various accent materials include suspended metal awnings, fabric awnings, stone sills and 
stone medallions.  The roof is flat, and the parapet varies in height for visual appeal.  The front of the 
building has several tower elements with pyramid hipped roofs.  These tower elements may have EIFS 
surfaces, possibly for wall signs.  The rear façade of the building (south) appears to be constructed entirely 
of EIFS.   
 

2. The Zoning Ordinance states that EIFS should only be used for accent features on commercial buildings.  
The rear façade of the building appears to be entirely constructed of EIFS.  
 

3. The Zoning Ordinance states that architectural design, height and massing should be consistent with 
adjacent properties.  The land to the north and east is undeveloped.  To the west is the Settler’s Pond 



 6 

townhome development.  This development has two-story townhomes with pitched roofs.  The property 
to the south is used for a single-family detached home.  Since the subject property is commercial and the 
adjacent developed properties are residential, the proposed architecture may be appropriate.  
 

4. The B-2 zone district allows a maximum building height of 35’, when measured from the building top of 
foundation to the highest part of the roof.  The color renderings or plans do not indicate the overall height 
of the building, but since it is a one-story building, it is likely less than 35’ tall.  
 

5. Mechanical units have not been identified on the building elevation drawings or on the site plan, although 
it is assumed that the units will be mounted on the rooftop.  Rooftop mechanical units must be screened 
from view of the public right-of-way using parapet walls (Article 7, Section A, Part 3, (c)).  

 
Lighting 
 

1. A lighting plan has not been submitted.  It is unclear whether there will be pole lights, building-mounted 
lights or both.  A photometric plan will be required prior to proceeding to a follow-up workshop.  

 
Other 
 

1. Walls that measure over 50’ long and 2.5’ high require approval from the Plan Commission, per page 70 of 
the Design Standards.  This regulation notes that such walls only require review and approval by the Plan 
Commission through the site plan review process, and do not specifically require a variance or Special Use 
Permit.  The retaining wall near the southeast corner of the property exceeds 50’ long, but details are 
missing regarding the height of the wall.  
 

2. The Village is requesting that a sidewalk along 108th Avenue be installed along the entire frontage, which 
is typical for any new development in the Village or newly annexed land into the Village.  

 
3. A trash enclosure is located on the south side of the building, technically located within the side yard, 

complying with the Zoning Ordinance.  Details of the enclosure are required, including height, materials, 
etc.  

 
4. A sidewalk is proposed connecting the building from the north façade to Route 30, complying with the 

Zoning Ordinance requirement for a pedestrian connection.  
 

5. Although a large portion of the property is located in a floodzone, there are no wetlands per the National 
Wetlands Inventory.   

 
2019 Comprehensive Plan  
 
The proposed building and potential uses, meets the intent of several goals of the 2019 Comprehensive Plan:  
 
Chapter 4: Green Initiatives  
 
Goal 4.8 (Priority A): Where possible, encourage infill development and adaptive reuse.  The proposed building 
addition would be considered infill development, being placed on an undeveloped property along a regional 
arterial road with easy access to existing utilities.   
 
Chapter 7: Economic Prosperity  
 
Goal: 7.1. Support and encourage the diversification of the Village’s tax base.  The proposed building would add 
commercial real estate along a major road within the Village, creating momentum for development of the 
undeveloped property to the east.   
 
 



S 1
08

TH
 AV

E
W LINCOLN HWY

PIONEER TRL

WA
LN

UT
RID

GE CTS BUTTERNUT CIR

WILLIAMSBURG
TRL

YANKEE RIDGE DR

CARDINAL LAKE DR

SETTLERS POND D R

PIO
NE

ER
 C

T

CO
NC

OR
D

DR

MO
RN

IN
G 

DO
VE

 LN

RED BUD CT

WI
LL

IA
MS

BU
RG

 C
T

LEXINGTON CT

SETTLERS POND CT

ME
AD

OW
 LA

RK
 C

T

BROOKRIDGE CREEK DR

PLANK TRL

10841 W. Lincoln Highway

µ

0 500 1,000250
Feet



S 1
08

TH
 AV

E

W LINCOLN HWY

SE
TT

LE
RS

 PO
ND

 D
R

SETTLERS POND CT

10841 W. Lincoln Highway

µ

0 150 30075
Feet



W LINCOLN HWY

S W
OL

F R
D

S E
LS

NE
R 

RD

S 1
08

TH
 AV

E

WILLIAMSBURG TRL

YANKEE RIDGE DRPIONEER TRL

S B UTTERNUT CIR

LINCOLN LN

W NEBRASKA ST

BU
TT

ER
NU

T TR
L

WALNUT RIDGECT

CE
DA

R 
LN

BROOKRIDGE CREEK DR

LEXINGTON LN

BROOKRIDGE DR

CARDINAL LAKE DR

SETTLERS POND DR

CO
NC

OR
D D

R

FRANKLIN AVE

BROOKSIDE LN

MORN ING
DOVE

L N

PIO
NE

ER
 C

T

W AUTUMN VALLEY LN

RED BUD CT

WI
LL

IA
MS

BU
RG

 C
T

N BUTTERNUT CIR

VERMONT RD W

VERMONT RD N

W SUTTON DALE LN

BROOKRIDGE CT

S SUTTON DALE LN

HACKBERRY RD

LEXINGTON CT

SETTLERS POND CT
ME

AD
OW

 LA
RK

 C
T

PLANK TRL
PLANK TRL

YANKEE RIDGE CT
MA

PL
E R

IDG
E C

T

HAWTHORNE RD
10841 W. Lincoln Highway

µ

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

Forest Preserve

B-4
B-2

R-4

C-4

A-1

A-1

B-4

R-4

E-R

R-2

R-1



S 1
08

TH
 AV

E
W LINCOLN HWY

PIONEER TRL

WA
LN

UT
RID

GE CTS BUTTERNUT CIR

WILLIAMSBURG
TR

L

CARDINAL LAKE DR

YANKEE RIDGE DR

SETTLERS POND D R

PIO
NE

ER
 C

T

M OR N IN G
D O VE

L N

RED BUD CT

WI
LL

IA
MS

BU
RG

 C
T

CO
NC

OR
D 

DR

SETTLERS POND CT

LEXINGTON CT

ME
AD

OW
 LA

RK
 C

T

BROOKRIDGE CREEK DR

PLANK TRL

10841 W. Lincoln Highway

µ

0 500 1,000250
Feet

Forest Preserve

R-4 R-2

R-1

C-4*

A-1*

R-4
A-1*B-2

B-4

E-R



-027

-032

Pt. -102-035

-007

-008

-001

-003

-004

-005

-006
-007 -008 -009 -010 -011 -012 -013 -014 -015 -016

-017

-018

-019

-020

-021

-022

-023

-024

-025

-026

-027

-028

-007

-029

-039

-011 -012 -013 -014 -015

-005

-011

-068

-005

-015

-014

-016

-017

-030

-031

-032

-033

-034

-035

-036

-037

-038

Pt. 29-100-027

-002

-005

-006

-016

-0
18-0
19

-0
20

-0
21

-0
22 -0
23

-0
24

-025

-026

-0
27 -0
28 -0

29

-030

-031

-032

-040

-041

-042

-043

-033

-034

-035

-036

-037

-038

-039

-040

-041

-042

-043

-044

-045

-0
46

-0
47 -0
48 -0
49 -0

50 -0
51 -0
52 -0
53

-044

-045

-046

-055

-062

-048

-049

-050
-064

Pt. 6.137

3.063

1.174

Pt. 188.05

3.67

2.25

1.797

1.52

2.561

2.30

PI
ON

EE
R 

TR
L

PI
ON

EE
R 

TR
AI

L 
CT

SETTLERS POND DR

10
8T

H 
AV

E

PIONEER TRL

SETTLERS POND
CT

OLD PLANK (Formerly N.Y.C. RR.)

LINCOLN (US RTE 30) HWY

-047

1.491
-035

S002919

S003255

S007396

S007574

301

453

300

301

302

303

100

149

154

1234567891011

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

4243

44

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53 54

55

56

57

45

1

7

1

155

12
10

.6

46
8.

27
  (

7.
09

5 
ch

ai
ns

)

46
8.

27
  (

7.
09

5 
ch

ai
ns

)

990  (15 chains)

13
0

41.15

26
5.

98

130.38

216.64

29
2.

19
27

0.
44

17
0.8

9

18
0

20
7.

82

50

1336.80

2670

50

10
5

150150

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0 15

0

90

150

150

150

16
0.

01

16
0.

01177.5516
0

16
0

16
0

16
0

16
0

16
0

15
7.

83

21
1.7

3

150.59

16
0.

01

170

170

170160

161.30

164.22

10
0

210.74

170.01

90
13

1.
03

17
1.

57

27.98 170.27 114.49 90 90 90 90 90 214.10 100 100 120 40

75.89 90 90 90 90 90 137.13 175 100 120

58.75

101.57

10
8.

56

90 90 90 90 90 135.35

133.51909090

160.01

50
.0

1
40

.0
1

10
0

90

90
55

.6
2

68.91

4094.29

10
0.

64

68
.5

0

30
.3

1

13
6.

16
14

8.
53

398.50

16.64

36
.7

5

122.91

15
6.

64

17
4.

74

174.12

149128.42

19
9.4

8

369.67

128.42

143.38

150

13
8.

22

117.32

103.31

12
9.

41

99.46

81
.9

9
64

.57

137.30

105.29

84

121.78

16
.1

7

418.63

183.11

36.71

75
.6

4
65

.3
1

59.24

65.70

73
.3

0

13.39

90
.0

5 90 90
90

90

15
5.

22

9.
71

35
.5

9

183.99

180.01

50.32

150.23

82.7312.24
89.0446.36 54.67

70
.2

210
0

46.36 59.65

86.25

310.95 (R)  311.05 (M) 104.30

23
8.

63

83.28

29.47

48
.69

37
.70

48
.69

2.10

31
.2

9

120.42 8.16

8.16

99
.41

66

9090

24
.6

1

90

90

89
.6

1

91
.5

7

150.01

150

65.42

15
0.

01

90

10
1.

97
90

10
2.

09
66

66

10.6070.21

535.07

18
1.

57

268.28

41
4.

15
 (R

)  
 4

06
.3

0 
(M

)

10
3.

54

45
0

66

183.71

23
0

53
.8

6
39

.2
8

5

5

50.71 31.90 39.63 57.77 55.22

20
.9

0 42.90

23.84
36.33

34.23

252.80

58
2.

70

16
0

11
6.

33
11

0
13

5
13

0
24

6.
57

53.46

140

140

30.31
17.40

2.43138.90

138.87

138.85

89
.6

3

9.
15

128.42

128.42

83
.2

8

80
.1

9

5.68

98.92
55.03 30.04

36
.0

1

0.84
24.43

400

35
3

31
3

18
1.

67

165.41

195.87

70
.2

9 1100.94
105.92

33

32
8.

31
(M

) 3
28

.4
3(

R
)

46
8.

57

229

290.08

232.23
60.36

25.43

38.35

13
1.

42

12.20

61.01

32.13

38
.1

1

16
.4

8

13
9.

63

20
.7

4

19
.4

3

48.69

26
.6

2

22
.0

7

20.46

78.02 33.71 51.75

12
6.

25

10
5.

15

12
6.

58

8.219.54
9.08

28.94

32.14

52.19

15.0637.17

61.02

13
1.

42

11
1.

32

13
5.

72

21
.9

5
29

.55

25.28

36.42 29.95 92.26

28
.7

0

30
.5

4

4.
00

26
.0

1 39.50

18
.4

9

94.28 30.12 39.65 64.74

125.54

127.83

51
.9

4
31

.7
8

75
.8

5

48.99
31.88

28.11
5.38

51
.5

9
32

.3
1

24
.8

4
42

.4
3

8.47

140

140

140.27

51
.3

7
32

.3
1

33
.3

0
42

.5
4

96
.7

6

77
.7

0

33
.6

1
55

.9
9

33
.6

1
77

.3
8

172.40

172.28

91
.1

1
36

.0
3

81
.4

9
36

.0
3

61
.4

5

61
.5

6

120.42

120.42

30
.0

1
62

.1
2

30
.0

1
61

.0
6

129.53

129.61

19.71

5.
72

44
.1

8

6.07

60
.5

2
33

.8
5

32
.3

2
75

.0
6

85
.8

7

17.44

137.29

144.31

129.91

.3
9

49.84
35.9332.05

31.45

30.22 32.05 35.93 49.84

12
9.

41

12
9.

41

12
9.

41

58.66 32.08 33.62 78.08

5.3833.6232.08
58.66

12
9.

41

12
9.

41

12
9.

41

71
.5

8
31

.9
0

54
.5

0

71
.4

4
31

.9
0

54
.6

4

140

140

10
2.

91

10
3.

73

140

140

48
.4

8

48
.6

4
32

.0
2

33
.3

7

32
.0

2
33

.3
7

80
0

33
4.

24
(R

) 3
34

.2
7(

M
)

230.08 60

50

28
.48

119.5155.84
117.89

51.95
4.73

30.63
6.39

38.25

10
7.

46
10

7.
46

105.83 25.74

82
.8

2

66
.8

3

211.05

12
6.

57

12
3.

70

S003255
Beechen & Dill's Settlers Pond
PUD
R97-061234
S007396
New Lenox State Bank
R2002-192064
S007574
New Lenox State Bank Phase 2
R2003-261229

Tax Assessment Map
Revised for the 2021 Assessment

Copyrighted 2021 by Will County GIS Division

Jennifer Bertino-Tarrant
County Executive Map PageWill County, Illinois

Subdivision List

Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data
Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic Information System has been produced and
processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, adequacy,
completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and aggregate uses of
the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, express
or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be
periodically made to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication.
If you have obtained information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that
electronic data can be altered subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended
that careful attention be paid to the contents of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with
any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any questions to Mapping & Platting at (815) 740-4664.

09-20C-E
Frankfort Township
E.1/2 S.W.1/4 Sec.20 T.35N. R.12E.

1 inch = 200 feet
Plot Date: Jul 08 2021

09-20B-W
09

-2
0A

-W
09

-2
0C

-W

09-20D
-W

09-29A-W 09-29A-E

09-29B-W

09-20A-E

Rhonda R. Novak
Supervisor of Assessments



 



10841 W. Lincoln

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Wetlands
Estuarine and Marine Deepwater
Estuarine and Marine Wetland

Freshwater Emergent Wetland
Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland
Freshwater Pond

Lake
Other
Riverine

May 2, 2022

0 0.055 0.110.0275 mi

0 0.085 0.170.0425 km

1:3,296

This page was produced by the NWI mapper
National Wetlands Inventory (NWI)

This map is for general reference only. The US Fish and Wildlife 
Service is not responsible for the accuracy or currentness of the 
base data shown on this map. All wetlands related data should 
be used in accordance with the layer metadata found on the 
Wetlands Mapper web site.



 

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

Page 1111 of 3333 

  
 

March 25, 2022 
 

To:  Engineering Resource Associates, Inc. 
  3s701 West Avenue, Suite 150 
  Warrenville, IL 60555 

  
Attn:  Mr. Nicholas Varchetto, PE 

 
RE: Abe Lincoln Retail Center (Route 30 & 108th Avenue) 
  Project Number 22-R0263 
  Preliminary Engineering Review #1 

 
Dear Mr. Varchetto: 

 
On behalf of the Village of Frankfort, we reviewed the Preliminary Engineering Plans (Sheets C-1.0 and C-4.0 only) dated 
1/31/22 for the above referenced project and provide the following comments.  Please review the comments and revise 
the plans and provide supporting documents.  Italicized comments remain from previous correspondence. 

    
General 

1. Approvals from outside agencies/entities are the responsibility of the owner and/or owners’ engineer.  Provide 
a copy of all correspondence, including but not limited to: 

a. IDOT (entrance improvements, geometry, drainage; ROW dedication) 
b. ACOE 
c. IEPA (Water, Sewer and NPDES) 
d. Fire Department 
e. Utility Companies 

2. Per Village Design Standards, walls are strongly discouraged. Revise the plan to decrease the extent and 
location of the wall: 

a. Walls shall not be located within 50’ of the front property line.  Any walls proposed closer to the  
108th Avenue right-of-way line will require a variance; approval by Village Board is not guaranteed. 

b. Relocate/reconfigure the wall such that it will not be lower than the floodplain and subject to 
hydrostatic forced. 

c. Walls in excess of 2.5’ height and/or 50’ length must be approved by the Plan Commission.  The 
current wall is shown with 7.0’ height and 250’ length. 

d. Where retaining walls with height 2.5’ or more are permitted by the Plan Commission, drawings and 
calculations shall be provided, signed and sealed by an Illinois licensed Structural Engineer, as well 
as a geotechnical report by an Illinois licensed Civil Engineer.” 

e. Show and label the length of any required railing/fence. 
3. Clearly show existing (and proposed) ROW for Route 30 and 108th Avenue on all applicable sheets. 
4. A tree survey will be required.  Any preservation trees removed defined per the Landscape Ordinance must be 

mitigated on-site. 
5. Please indicate the benchmark; datum shall be NAVD 88. 

    
Floodplain 

6. Provide an existing conditions flood study to confirm the area ‘available’ for development. 
7. Provide preliminary compensatory storage cross sections and calculations as well as a proposed conditions 

flood study to confirm that the project will comply with Village requirements and result in no adverse impacts 
to adjacent properties.  



 

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

Page 2222 of 3333 

Wetlands 
8. Provide a wetland report and opinion of jurisdiction due to the floodplain and the NWI feature on the property. 
9. The existing and proposed plans should include any existing wetland limits and required buffer. 

 
Access 

10. Revise the east entrance to be further from the intersection of Route 30 and 108th Avenue. 
11. The condition of 108th Avenue will be evaluated for any needed repairs or improvements as part of the project. 
12. Extend the sidewalk along 108th Avenue for the full length of the property.  This will include an extension of the 

existing culvert. 
 
Parking Lot 

13. Please confirm that the project/site will NOT include a drive thru.  If one will or may be proposed, please show 
the location and proposed stacking on the plan. 

14. The parking table should break down the components for required parking (based on square footage plus 
anticipated number of employees for the largest working shift).  Additional comments may be forthcoming. 

15. Revise the site geometry and maneuverability analysis to accommodate a B-40 vehicle with 60’ radius (the 
maximum wheel angle should be 25.5). 

16. The current site plan does not provide clear circulation (with partial perpendicular parking/two-way and partial 
angled parking/one-way) and may result in unintended confusion and conflicts between drivers.  If angled 
parking will be provided, the one-way aisles should be clearly designated (on a plan and after construction). 

17. Consider removing/realigning parking near the entrances to prevent vehicles from backing out of stalls into 
oncoming traffic. 

18. Revise drive aisles to be 26’ wide for areas with perpendicular stalls per Village Design Standards / ITE. 
19. Increase the sidewalk width to 7’ where vehicles will overhang in front of the building. 

 
Stormwater & Grading 

20. Provide a stormwater report including sizing of the underground storage facility.  The volume labeled on the 
plan appears to be less than required by the Village’s Design Standards.  Exhibits are needed to demonstrate 
the area of “development” in accordance with Village and County detention requirements.  Include evaluation 
of the restrictor and effective volume adjacent to the floodplain. 

21. Indicate what type and depth of underground facility is proposed.  Provide a preliminary detail of the restrictor 
and overflow component.  Add a level spreader or other energy dissipation measure downstream of the outlet. 

22. All sites with underground detention should include some type of Best Management Practices (BMP).  At a 
minimum, means shall be provided to remove oil, floatable debris and sediment. 

23. Clarify how the north and south basins will function and/or interconnect.  Will the site include only one restrictor? 
24. Confirm screening requirements with Village Staff along the west property line and south limit of pavement.  

Evaluate screening with respect to drainage and overland flow routes. 
25. Storm sewer should be extended to ensure all portions of the paved areas are routed to the stormwater 

facilities (southwest corner, entrances, etc.). 
26. Show downspout connections to the downstream storage or storm sewer. 
27. Grassed areas shall be 5:1 maximum. 

 
Water & Sewer 

28. Adjust they west hydrant location outside of pavement. 
29. Label the water service and provide a valve. 

 
Please note that this engineering review is based on the Village of Frankfort Design Standards (June 2009) and the 
Village of Frankfort Flood Regulations (February 2019) and excludes review of site, planning, zoning, photometric, 
lighting details, signage and landscaping requirements of other Village ordinances and codes being performed by the 
Development Services Department and other Village designees.  Furthermore, our scope of work for a Preliminary Plan 



 

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

Page 3333 of 3333 

review does not include review or comments for items that are typically addressed during final engineering, including 
but not limited to requirements for letter of credit, easements, lighting, accessibility, traffic signs, tile surveys, storm 
sewer sizing, ponding, overland flow routes, detailed grading, soil erosion and sediment control and project 
specifications. 
 
Should you have any questions or require any further information, please contact me at dwest@reltd.com or (815) 412-
2702.  At time of resubmittal of this project, please include a disposition letter responding to each listed comment as 
well as reference to revision on plan sheet or supporting document (where applicable). 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Dana E. West, PE, CFM, CPESC 
Senior Project Manager 



cgruba
Received

































1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                     June 9, 2022 

 
Project: Everbrook Academy 
Meeting Type:  Workshop #2  
Requests: Major Change to a PUD; Special Use Permit for a Daycare Center/Preschool; Special Use 

Permit for extended hours of operation 
Location: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway (Pending Address Assignment) a.k.a Lot 1 in New Lenox State 

Bank Subdivision 
Applicant:  Tom Williams, Owner’s Representative 
Prop. Owner:  REM Acquisitions, LLC 
Consultants:  Javier Cora, Architect; Scott DiGilio, Civil Engineer   
Representative: Marty Murphy, Attorney   
Report By:  Michael J. Schwarz, AICP 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 2.561 acres                                                                     Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 19-09-20-301-055-0000 
Existing Zoning:  B4 Office District, PUD 
Prop.  Zoning: B4 Office District, PUD, with a Special Use 

Permit 
 for a Daycare Center  
Building(s) / Lot(s): Vacant/undeveloped lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Vacant/undeveloped General Commercial B4 PUD 

North  Forest Preserve 
 

Parks / Open Space Will 
County 

A-1 
South  Single-Family  

Attached Residential 
  Single-Family 

Attached Residential 
R4 PUD 

East Single-Family  
Attached Residential 

 Single-Family 
Attached Residential 

R4 PUD 

West Commercial (Bank)  General Commercial B2 PUD 

 
 
Project Summary  
 
The applicant, Tom Williams, representing the property owner, REM Acquisitions, LLC, has filed an application 
requesting (1) a Major Change to the Prairie Crossings Planned Unit Development (PUD); (2) a Special Use Permit for 
a Daycare Center/Preschool in the B4 Office District; and (3) a Special Use Permit for extended hours of operation, 
for the property located at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, Illinois (PIN: 19-09-20-301-055-0000).  
 
The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held a workshop on this matter on April 28, 2022.  At that workshop, 
the members discussed the proposed use for a daycare center/preschool, the view of the north side of the building 
and outdoor play area from Lincoln Highway and a number of other design details.  The applicant has since provided 
a Tree Removal and Preservation Plan, provided a Photometric Plan, revised the Landscape Plan, and revised the 
building and site Signage Plan.   



2 

Property Background  
 
The overall shopping center known as Prairie Crossings, located at the southeast corner of U.S. Route 30/Lincoln 
Highway, was annexed, rezoned, and granted a Special Use for a Planned Unit Development (PUD), along with other 
Special Uses for a drive-up window for a bank, a gas station, outdoor seating, sale of alcoholic beverages, and a carry-
out restaurant, on August 5, 2002 (Ordinance Nos. 1908, 1909, 1918).  From staff’s research of Village records, it 
appears that a small portion of the subject property – the “bump-out” at the southeast corner, was included in the 
Prairie Crossings PUD as depicted on the “Zoning Plan”, which is Exhibit C to the annexation agreement.  The larger 
remainder of the property appears to already have been annexed into the Village and zoned C-5 PUD per the 2001 
Zoning Map.  C-5 was the Office/Transitional District zoning classification under the former Village Zoning Ordinance 
before the current zoning classification system was adopted on September 17, 2001, as part of the current version 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
In 2002, the subject property was recorded as Lot 1 in the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision (Lot 2 is the property 
which now contains the BMO Harris Bank).  
 
On January 22, 2008, the Village Board approved Ordinance No. 2439, approving a Major Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) Change for the subject property, two allow two separate office buildings with 105 total parking spaces. Office 
Building #1 was approximately 11,327 square feet and located on the northern portion of the site along U.S. Route 
30/Lincoln Highway, 30 feet from the eastern property line. Office Building #2 was approximately 8,866 square feet 
and located on the southern portion of the site, 50 feet from the southern property line. A key feature of the plan 
was a rectangular green space with raised seating area and center planter island in the middle of the parking lot 
within the center portion of the site. The proposed office buildings also mimicked the bank building (originally the 
New Lenox State Bank building but is now BMO Harris Bank) in terms of architectural style, roof pitch, roof dormers, 
and building materials. Ordinance No. 2439 and associated information and various plans are attached for 
background information. Construction of the office buildings never occurred, likely due to the economic downturn 
during the Great Recession.    

 
Attachments 

1. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
2. Site Photographs taken 4.21.22 
3. ALTA/NSPS Land Title and Topographic Survey dated 2.17.22, received 4.18.22 
4. Site Plan dated 3.1.22, received 4.18.22 
5. Site Details dated 3.1.22, received 4.18.22 
6. Building Elevations dated 3.1.22, received 4.18.22 
7. Material Board dated 3.1.22, received 4.18.22 
8. Landscape Plan (black and white) dated 5.23.22, received 5.25.22  
9. Playground Details dated 3.1.22, received 4.21.22 
10. Playground Equipment Plans and Details dated 4.5.22, received 4.21.22 
11. Ground Sign Details and Plot Plan dated 3.30.22 (revised), received 5.25.22 
12. Wall Sign Specifications dated 3.30.22 (revised), received 5.25.22 
13. Ordinance No. 2439 with associated plans and background information 
14. Detention Easement Agreement granting rights to the subject property dated 10.14.02, received 4.22.22  
15. Tree Removal/Preservation Plan dated 5.24.22, received 5.25.22 
16. Photometric Plan with Light Fixture Specifications dated 5.19.22, received 5.25.22 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 
Zoning 
 



3 

1. The applicant proposes to construct a ±12,870 sq. ft. daycare center/preschool called Everbrook Academy 
on Lot 1 in the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision, located at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway (address assignment 
pending). 

2. The subject property is 2.5612 acres and is located immediately to the east of the BMO Harris Bank at 11041 
W. Lincoln Highway.  

3. The property is zoned B4 Office District, and a small portion of the property is part of the Prairie Crossings 
Planned Unit Development which contains the adjacent BMO Harris Bank and the overall shopping center 
to the west. The larger remainder of the property is part of an older Planned Unit Development per the 
2001 Zoning Map. 

4. A Major Change to the PUD is required because the property is currently undeveloped. The proposed 
development is a major change to the Prairie Crossings PUD (for the small “bump-out” at the southeast 
corner of the subject property), as well as a major change to a previous PUD for the larger remainder of the 
property as was depicted on the 2001 Zoning Map. 

5. A Special Use Permit for a Daycare Center/Preschool is required in the B4 Office District. 
6. The Village's ordinance does not contain specific use standards for daycare centers/preschools. Parking and 

traffic flow are often primary areas of consideration for daycare centers/preschools. The unique nature of 
their operation may generate spikes in traffic and parking demand during peak times when children are 
being dropped off and picked up. 

 
Site Plan 
 

1. The submitted Site Plan depicts a one story, L-shaped, 12,870 square-foot daycare center/preschool 
building, situated in the central portion of the property, with the front entrance to the building oriented to 
face a proposed parking lot to the south, and the rear of the building and outdoor playground area oriented 
to face north toward Illinois Route 30/Lincoln Highway.  The main entrance would be located at the 
southwest corner of the building. 

2. Access to the proposed parking lot is via a cross-access easement through Lot 1 in the New Lenox State 
Bank Subdivision, Phase 2. Said cross-access easement is currently improved with pavement and curb and 
gutter and serves as the driveway entrance for the existing BMO Harris Bank parking lots and drive-through 
lanes. There is an existing signalized intersection at the eastern entrance to the Prairie Crossings Shopping 
Center, immediately to the west of the BMO Harris Bank. 

3. The proposed building complies with all required setbacks in the B4 Office District.  
4. Increased building setbacks are provided from the residential properties to the east (50' required; more 

than 67’ provided) and from the residential properties to the south (50’ required; more than 165’ provided). 
5. The Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance requires daycare centers/preschools to provide parking at a ratio 

of one (1) space per employee plus one (1) space per ten (10) client children or adults. The applicant has 
indicated that the facility will have a maximum capacity of 150 children (this would be the total enrollment 
assuming 100 percent occupancy), with ages 6 weeks up to 12 years, and 15 staff during the busiest times, 
resulting in a parking requirement of 30 total spaces. 
The facility likely will not operate at maximum capacity at all times and on all days, as some children will 
attend on a part time basis. 

6. A total of 41 parking spaces are depicted on the Site Plan, including 2 handicap accessible spaces, which 
complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 

7. For a previous daycare proposal on a different property in February 2019 (The Learning Experience located 
at 20970 S. La Grange Road) staff reviewed the American Planning Association publication "Parking 
Standards" which recommends daycare facilities provide parking based upon either capacity (students and 
teachers) or square footage of the facility. Recommendations based upon capacity ranged from one space 
for every 10-15 students and one space per teacher. Parking recommendations based upon square footage 
ranged from 1 space per every 375 - 500 square feet. Using the most conservative calculation, 30 parking 
spaces would be required for the Everbrook proposal based on capacity and 35 parking spaces would be 
required based on square footage. The proposed 41 parking spaces is on the high end of the American 
Planning Association’s recommendations and is consistent with Village ordinance requirements. 

8. In February 2019, following the PC/ZBA workshop for The Learning Experience proposal, staff conducted a 
parking analysis of the existing Kindercare daycare facility located at 10003 W. Lincoln Highway to provide 
the Commissioner's with a better real world understanding of parking demands and trip generations 



4 

associated with daycare facilities. In that analysis, the maximum number of trips to the Kindercare site 
during any 15-minute period under observation was 14, which occurred between 4:30 and 4:45 pm. The 
maximum number of cars parked within that 40-space lot was 21, which occurred at 3:45 pm. 

9. The applicant has indicated that the peak drop-off period is from 6:30-9:30 a.m. and the peak pick-up period 
is from 3:30-6:30 p.m. 

10. The applicant has indicated that curbside drop-off and pickups are not permitted. 
11. To preserve as many of the parking spaces as possible in front of the building for customer traffic, staff 

recommends that Commissioners consider a condition requiring that employees shall utilize the proposed 
15 parking spaces located along the south end of the parking lot. 

12. No loading berth is depicted on the Site Plan. The Zoning Ordinance requires one (1) loading berth for a 
school or educational facility, a minimum of 50’ in length, 12’ in width, and 14’ in vertical clearance. The 
applicant is seeking a waiver of this requirement.  

13. A ±5,975 square-foot outdoor play area is proposed to the north of the building. The applicant proposes to 
enclose the play area with a 6’ tall, white, semi-vinyl privacy fence. The play area complies with the required 
minimum front yard setback in the B4 Office District, which is a minimum of 150’ from the centerline of U.S. 
Route 30/Lincoln Highway.  Staff has some concerns about the view of the proposed white vinyl fence from 
U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway.  A higher quality fence and/or additional landscaping should be discussed 
at the workshop.  In initial discussions with the applicant, staff suggested that the building be flipped so 
that the play area would be closer to the bank to the west and further from the residential subdivision to 
the east.  The applicant indicated that the internal configuration of the building does not allow for that 
change. 

14. The applicant has submitted Playground Details and Playground Equipment Details.  At this time, staff’s 
only concern is the proposed “Storage Shed by Tenant” which is depicted and labeled on the Site Plan.  Staff 
will need to review the details of the proposed shed to ensure that it does not exceed the height of the 6’ 
tall, white, semi-vinyl fence.    

15. Though not yet updated on the previous Site Plan, the revised Landscape Plan now reflects the removal of 
the 6' tall, black, vinyl-coated chain link fences along the northwest and southeast sides of the building.  
Those fences were to provide a measure of security for the small yard areas where emergency-edit doors 
are located on those sides of the building. 

 
Landscape Plan  
 

1. The applicant has submitted a Landscape Plan in both color and black and white, which depicts the 
proposed new plantings as well as identifies any existing trees to be preserved. 

2. Staff has not performed a detailed review of the Landscape Plan at this time. Upon cursory review, the 
Landscape Plan generally appears to comply with the Village’s minimum requirements under the Municipal 
Code. 

3. The proposed Landscape Plan generally complies with the landscape regulations for the transition yards for 
the residential properties to the south and east. 

4. The proposed plan contemplates the removal of several existing trees in the center portion of the site where 
the parking lot would be located.  

5. The applicant proposes to offset the removed trees by planting numerous new trees and plantings within 
the 25' transition yard area. 

6. The Landscape Plan depicts a trash enclosure in the southwest corner of the parking lot, more than 50’ from 
the south property line. The Site Details Plan (Sheet AS2.1) depicts an 8’ tall trash enclosure which will be 
constructed of materials to match the exterior of the building – masonry block and stone veneer wainscot 
– as well as a composite wood slat gate doors.  

7. As part of the development of the Prairie Crossings Shopping Center, the subject property was improved 
with a terraced front yard along U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway, which includes two parallel limestone block 
retaining walls.  

 
 
Engineering Plans 



5 

 
1. The applicant has not submitted Engineering Plans at this time. Staff anticipates that these plans will be 

submitted following the workshop and prior to the public hearing. 
2. The applicant has submitted a recorded Detention Easement Agreement.  The applicant has indicated that 

the document provides that the owner subject property has the right to utilize the existing stormwater 
detention basin for the overall Prairie Crossings Shopping Center which is located to the south of the 
adjacent BMO Harris Bank parking lot.  

3. The B4 Office District requires a maximum impervious surface lot coverage of 70%. It appears based on the 
submitted Site Plan, that the proposed development will have enough green space to comply with this 
requirement.    

 
Architecture 
 

1. The applicant proposes to construct a single-story building with a hip roof, including a dominant gable over 
the entrance on the south elevation. Lesser gables are proposed over two sets of windows on the south 
elevation and over three sets of widows on the west elevation. No gables are proposed on the north 
elevation facing U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway or the east elevation facing the adjacent residential 
subdivision. The north and east elevations each include a recessed rooftop area which would contain the 
mechanical units for the building. 

2. The predominant exterior material on all elevations is thin brick in a red color which attempts to match the 
adjacent BMO Harris Bank building. Staff will need a material sample to verify.     

3. The more residential style of the building is a distinct departure from the Federalist style of architecture for 
the BMO Harris Bank building. 

4. The proposed 5/12 roof pitch is less than the much steeper 9/12 roof pitch of the adjacent BMO Harris Bank 
but is generally consistent with the roof pitch of the gabled portions of the smaller outlot buildings in the 
Prairie Crossing Shopping Center.  

5. A 2’-8” cultures stone wainscot is proposed on all elevations. The stone style and color appears to be 
generally similar to the wainscot found on the buildings in the Prairie Crossing Shopping Center, but staff 
will need a material sample to verify. The adjacent BMO Harris Bank building does not have a stone 
wainscot. 

6. The wall under the dominant gable on the south elevation would be finished with E.I.F.S. (Exterior 
Insultation Finishing Systems) which is a type of cladding system that integrates insulation and 
weatherproofing. The Village does not typically allow E.I.F.S. as an exterior material. Staff has advised that 
applicant that an alternative higher quality material should be considered in this area, especially for the 
north elevation which would face U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway.  

7. The exterior walls within the two recessed rooftop areas also would be finished with E.I.F.S. (Exterior 
Insultation Finishing Systems). Staff has advised that applicant that an alternative higher quality material 
should be considered in these two areas.  

8. The height of the building is 26’-4” which would comply with the maximum height of 35 feet in the B4 Office 
District. 

9. The walls under the lesser gables – two gables on the south elevation and three gables on the west 
elevation – would be finished with Nichiha which is a brand name of fiber cement siding, in a vertical 
orientation. The proposed color is Cedar. 

10. The proposed vinyl windows would have clear glass and almond color trim. 
 
Photometrics/Site Lighting Plan 
 

1. The applicant has provided a Photometrics Plan and light fixture specifications.  The Plan depicts four 15’ 
tall parking lot lights.  The light fixtures are black, flat-head LED lights.  The Photometric Plan demonstrates 
that the light readings would be zero footcandles at the property lines.    

2. The Building Elevations depict ingress and egress lighting above all exterior doors, but no fixture details 
have been submitted.  

3. The applicant previously indicated that the lighting consultant is investigating light pole and exterior light 
fixture options to match or at least be compatible and harmonious with those which exist in the surrounding 
development. The adjacent BMO Harris Bank has black coach light fixtures on black poles within its parking 



6 

lot.  The Prairie Crossings Shopping Center has much taller black “shoebox” style light fixtures on black poles 
within its parking lot.  

4. Parking lot light fixtures may be mounted at 25' or less, which is the maximum height permitted by the 
Municipal Code. 

5. The Village’s Municipal Code requires decorative bases for all parking lot light poles. 
6. Given the proximity to nearby residential properties, the previous office approval in 2008 included a 

condition that the single parking lot light fixture was to be connected to a shutoff timer although no specific 
time was stated in the ordinance condition.  
 

Signage 
 

1. The applicant is proposing a total of three (3) exterior signs – one (1) ground sign along U.S. Route 30/Lincoln 
Highway and two (2) wall signs on the west and south building elevations.  A directional sign at the entrance 
to the parking lot has since been removed from the plan.  That previous sign would have required four (4) 
variations. 

2. The applicant is proposing a 20 square-foot monument sign along U.S. 30/Lincoln Highway.  The proposed 
sign is 7’-8” wide and 4’ high.  This is smaller than the previously submitted monument sign.  The maximum 
height of a sign for a single-tenant building within the B4 District is 7’ but may be increased 10% to allow 
for ornamental features (a maximum of 7’-8.4 inches). The maximum area for a freestanding sign for both 
single tenant and multi-tenant commercial uses is determined by the total square footage of the building(s). 
The maximum allowable area of the proposed monument sign is 20 square feet.  

3. The applicant is proposing two (2) internally illuminated wall signs – one on the western façade and one on 
the southern façade   of the building. Neither of the proposed wall signs face a public right-of-way. The Sign 
Regulations require that for a single-tenant business, one (1) wall sign shall be permitted per frontage on 
public right-of-way or frontage on a main point of ingress/egress into the commercial development. Staff 
believes that no variation would be needed for the location of the southern wall sign which faces the parking 
lot, as that wall sign would be in lieu of a sign which would be permitted on the north elevation (rear of the 
building) facing U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway. However, a variation for location would be needed for the 
proposed wall sign on the west elevation which faces the BMO Harris Bank, as this orientation does not 
face a public right-of-way or have frontage on a main point of ingress/egress into the commercial 
development. Further, the Sign Regulations do not allow cabinet or box-style signs. Only channel letter signs 
are permitted. The Sign Regulations also do not allow internally illuminated signs in the B4 District. Finally, 
the Sign Regulations allow no more than three (3) colors on sign, whereas the submitted sign details depict 
five (5) colors.  

4. The Village’s Municipal Code limits wall signage to a maximum of one square foot per linear foot of frontage 
resulting in a maximum wall sign square footage of approximately 145 square feet for the proposed 
building. The applicant proposes to install a 65 square-foot internally illuminated wall sign above the main 
entrance to the building (south elevation) and a 57 square-foot internally illuminated sign above the east 
elevation which faces the drive-aisle that serves the proposed parking lot. The total area of the two 
proposed wall signs is 122 square feet. 
 

Hours of Operation 
 

1. The proposed business hours of operation are 6:30 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. on weekdays. The facility is closed on 
Saturdays and Sundays. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow hours of operation outside 
of the Village’s normal hours of operation which are 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. under Article 6, Part 2(q) of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Standards for Planned Unit Developments  
 
For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section F of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance refers to Planned 
Unit Developments (refer to complete Article 3 attached). Part 4 of said Section F refers to the review standards the 
must be considered. 
 



7 

In granting or withholding approval of Preliminary Plans and Final Plans, the Plan Commission and the Village Board 
shall consider the extent to which the application fulfills the requirements of this Ordinance and the following 
standards:  
 

a. The plan is designed to protect the public health, welfare, and safety.  
 

b. The proposed development does not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 
immediate area.  
 

c. The plan provides for protection of the aesthetic and function of the natural environment, which shall 
include, but not be limited to, flood plains, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds, wetlands, soil and geologic 
characteristics, air quality, vegetation, woodlands, and steep slopes.  
 

d. The plan provides for and ensures the preservation of adequate recreational amenities and common open 
spaces.  
 

e. Residential use areas may provide a variety of housing types to achieve a balanced neighborhood.  
 

f. The planned unit development provides land area to accommodate cultural, educational, recreational, 
and other public and quasi-public activities to serve the needs of the residents thereof.  
 

g. The proposed development provide for the orderly and creative arrangement of all land uses with respect 
to each other and to the entire Village.  
 

Standards for Special Uses  
 

For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use request.  
 
The Plan Commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing plans and 
specifications for the proposed special use, which shall remain a part of the permanent record of the Plan 
Commission. The Plan Commission shall submit same, together with its recommendation to the Village Board for 
final action. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find:  
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, 
the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood.  
 

c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided.  
 

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 



8 

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which 
it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant 
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission.  

 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.07

1: 2,257

0 Miles

Aerial Photo - Lot 1 in New Lenox State Bank
Subdivision

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

4/22/2022 Date:

0.04

Address Points

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships



Site Photos – 11031 W. Lincoln Highway 

 

Figure 1: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed looking south from U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway. 

 

 

  Figure 2:  11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed looking south from U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway.   
    

   



 

 

 

  Figure 3: BMO Harris Bank at 11041 W. Lincoln Highway as viewed from U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway.   
 Subject property is located immediately adjacent to the east (left). 

 

 

 

 

   Figure 4:  11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed from cross-access drive behind BMO Harris Bank looing east. 
 

 



 

 

  Figure 5: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed looking north from cross-access drive behind BMO Harris Bank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Figure 6: Rear of Settlers Pond townhomes, viewed looking south from cross-access drive behind BMO 
 Harris Bank. 



 

   Figure 7:  Rear of Settlers Pond townhomes, viewed looking east from cross-access drive behind BMO  
    Harris Bank. 

 

 

  Figure 8:  U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway, viewed looking east from 11031 W. Lincoln Highway. 

  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Figure 10:  Existing landscape terrace with limestone block retaining walls along frontage of 11031 W.  
       Lincoln Highway, viewed looking west. 

  

Figure 9:  Existing landscape terrace with limestone block retaining walls along frontage of 11031 W.
 Lincoln Highway, viewed looking east. 



 

Figure 11:  Existing landscape terrace with limestone block retaining walls along frontage of 11031 W.      
Lincoln Highway, viewed looking south. 

 

 

   Figure 12:  Existing trees located in southern portion of subject property at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway. 



111111111\lllllll\lllllllllll\llllllll\llll\ R2~~e~~fr~fa~t~394 
2

L
0

AUR,IE
0

MCPHILL1PS Wi 11 County Record.er 10P 
D t 02/ 2912008 Time 08.50.00 

CK a e $30.75 
Recording Fees: $0.00 
IL Rental Hsng. Support Program: 

ORDINANCE NO. 243 9 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

(PUD) CHANGE FOR PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RETAIL CENTER 
(PRAIRIE CROSSINGS PROFESSIONAL CENTER - 11125 W. LINCOLN HIGHWAY) 

WHEREAS, Carlson Brothers Inc., applicant; and REM Acquisitions, LLC and Prairie 
Banlc & Trust Company, as Trustee under Trust Agreement dated December 12, 2005, and 
known as Trust Number 05-142, owners; filed an application with the Village of Frankfort for a 
major PUD change to the Prairie Crossings retail center property, located at 11125 W. Lincoln 
Highway, Frankfort, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the property is located within the cmvorate limits of the Village of 
Frankfort, in Will and Cook Counties, Illinois, and is zoned B-4 Office District with a Special 
Use for a PUD; and 

WHEREAS, a timely Notice of Public Hearing on this application before the Plan 
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Frankfort was published in the Star 
Newspaper announcing a Public Hearing on the application for a major PUD change for Lot 1 in 
New Lenox State Bank Subdivision of the Prairie Crossings development; and 

WHEREAS, at a time and place designated in such published notice, a Public Hearing 
was held before the Village of Frankfort Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals on said 
application; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Frankfmt Plan Commission recommended to the Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Frankfort that the subject property be granted a major PUD change to 
accommodate the construction of two one-story office buildings, with conditions as enumerated 
in Section 1 of this ordinance and as generally depicted on Exhibits A-1 through A-6, attached. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT, WILL & COOK COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 



SECTION 1. ZONING. 

PIN: 19-09-20-301-055-0000 
PARCEL 1 
LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART 
OF THE EAST y, OF THE SOUTHWEST V. OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, 
RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 8, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NO. R2002-192064 IN WILL 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
PARCEL2 
EASTMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL'S DEPARTMENT STORES, INC. A DELAWARE 
CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, 
RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-12121 FOR TI-IE PASSAGE 
OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY 
AND ACCESS ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DOCUMENT. 
PARCEL3 
EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF A 
TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, NOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, 
RECORDED MARCH 24, 2004 AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND 
EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK PHASE 
2, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-261229, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
commonly known as part of Lot 1 of the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision property, Prairie 
Crossings retail center, located at 11125 W. Lincoln Highway, in Frankfort, Will County, 
Illinois, is hereby granted a major PUD change, in accordance with the reviewed plans prepared 
by Arete 3 Ltd (Site Plan rev. 11.15.06; Landscape Plan, rev. 01.25.07; Elevations, rev. 04.02.07 
and 11.15.06; Tenant Signage, rev. 04.02.07; Photometric Plan, rev. 01.31.07) and subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Staff approval of final Covenants and Restrictions with language stating attic space to be 
used for storage only 

2. Extension of the sidewalk along Route 30 to the eastern property line 
3. Retaining wall material to match existing material in bulk and color 
4. Inclusion ofa cut-off timer on the parking lot light located west of the southernmost trash 

enclosure 
5. Removal of any wall signage on the northern fa9ade of Building 1, should the building 

reve1i back to a multi-tenant orientation. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER 
That all other ordinances or pmis or provisions of ordinances of the Village of Frankfort 

in conflict with any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be, and the same are hereby 
repealed. 

2 



SECTION3. SEVERABILITY 
This Ordinance and every provision thereof, shall be considered severable. In the event 

that any court of competent jurisdiction may find and declare any word, phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph, provision or section or part of a phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, provision or 
section of this Ordinance is void or unconstitutional, the remaining words, phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and provisions and parts of phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 
provisions and sections not ruled void or unconstitutional shall continue in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DA TE 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 

publication in pamphlet fonn as provided by law. 

PASSED, this 22nd day of January, 2008, with four members voting AYE; no members 

voting NAY; and two members absent; the President not voting; with no members abstaining or 

passing and said vote being: 

KEVIN EGAN ABSENT 
TODD S. MORGAN AYE 
RICHARD TREV ARTHAN AYE 

APPROVED this 22nd day of January, 2008. 

ATTEST: 

fu.tu:..· f?lfhM r&rL<: 
KATE.ROMANI 
VILLAGE CLERK 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 

VILLAGE CLERK 
VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT 
432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 
FRANKFORT, IL 60423 

CYNTHIA CORSO HEATH 
THOMAS J. PARRILLO 
R. DOUGLAS WALKER 

..<;J1· 
c:;;~" VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

AYE 
ABSENT 
AYE 

3 



STATE OF ILLINOIS) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF WILL) 

I, Alice Y. Schomburg, the Deputy Village Clerk of the Village of Frankfort, in the County 

and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Deputy Village Clerk of 

said Village, and as such official I do further certify that with the Village Clerk, I have the care and 

custody of all official records of the President and Board of Trustees of said Village, and that the 

foregoing document, attached hereto, being: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2439, AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) CHANGE FOR PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RETAIL CENTER (PRAIRIE 
CROSSINGS PROFESSIONAL CENTER- 11125 W. LINCOLN HIGHWAY) 

is a true, correct and compared copy of the original of said document, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and the corporate seal of said 

Village this 22"d day of January, 2008. 

(Seal) 



EXISTING 
BANK 

I --' 
~---__, 

iQ. FT. 
:iQ. FT. 

:iQ,FT. 

rALL5 

rALLS 
rALLS 
fALLs 

EXISTING DR.IVE ~1 

uir-t1· j 

I I 
PROPOSED 

OFFICE BUILDING #2 
:!:: B,866 S.F. 

I I 

lO~U- , -I' CVllVEP 11eNCl!E~ 

~R.Al,EP5EAl'lNO 

ll' CONSERV ... l'\Q,., 
EASE>..!E,.,l' 

DEPllI:Hi!D Cl.IJUI@ 
K.C. ST Al.LS, TY!' 
K,C. SICN. TYi' 

_JJL_ 
arete' 3 ltd 
do1lgn gioup 

1M.c~~-O-t»4 
~~-IC<J! 

r.&J.t:.1'1~""
'!lo!.J('l·11•0~ 

cnloJ.oom 

PROPOSED 

SITE 

PLAN 

PRAIRIE 
CROSSrNG 

PROFESSIONAL 
CENTRE 

FRANK.FORT, 1L 

SP-1 
1011 •: an~~ 

ORJOTN: !O'll"ll 
REV. DATE' \lllJ'!l<I 

SCALEc AS ,.,OTED 
0 <C•"•<><l 1007 ••C't'l\Tll 

•\("'"""i•ntw""' 

c..--x.1-1161/ A-1 



....... ,,,~,, 0 ''""""OV ... Tl>n'-"'U"""" 

~~""'°'""'"''"'''I•- ;~:~::::g~:~~~ 
M~!!t/':;M~V&vr•m•n••v"' '"'L' 

@ '"""'OlVUG•U"T"<"'""'"" 

0 ''"""""_.. ........... ,. ... ., ..... ... Wf,rnLr••,,•u-,.,.,., ............... . 

lF"V•t11''10ED '*"u .. OUiO\P 
""" r•cvrnr.n ""'u ••cVtO<n 

11o•v.r•ovoorn,. 
l•OHJ ,.._OVll>ll> 

• """'" """m•rn" '"''"'"""" 

~ 1mm.n1v""'"""""'"""nv•n 

"'""fnl4U nr•n<>'40H••ITI '"•UUX:4T•Dt<)"TOl"'IU><I "1 
...... I U•U ••[ "UT ~•lCUl.A TtC I~ T> .. >Ulrt~ To'""''"" <0"" 

'""'•<co""" 
''"'" ''"""'" 

' ............................ '"°""~"" '"""'"~ "' ""'" ....... ,..,, .. ,,..,.,, .......... ~ ... "'""''~" 
:"~;.~;;:""'" ,.,.,,....,_,, 1-•0> ""' "'"""'""'"' .,,,,_.,,..,_., '"" O''M""" ...... ,_, ....... ~, .... "U"'<~•l 

~~;.:.~·.-:~" MW WO••._,, ...... - •• ~ ,..., ·- .... - ... """'""' ... -··"~' '" .. ~~· ••• .._ ""'°'" tt< 

' '""'"''-''"' ... ••••OOU•IO·""'"'•~·•"'""""" .. "'"' 
• • ._.,..,..,.,,,.._,r,.,•r•oo.,o••••'"""'"_,"•0101""'...,"" ..................... ,, .... ,, ... , ..... , ....................... . 
::..:.;:,:::;: ;.-:,,";!~,\';"''" .......... """"""'" '"'"" .. _ ..................................... """•<OP. ........ . 

" ......................... "'""''"'""'"''"' ... '"''"''"-........ " .. , .... ,, ................. ,,.. ... ~ ... 
" .. ~ ................................ ,, .... -... ...,"""""' ................... ,, .. ,, .. . . , .. , .. ,.,_. ................ ,. •. ., ......... ,,,,.,.,. .... ..,.. ... .,._,., .. ,,, .. ._,, ...... . 

ANNUAL, PERENNIAL, 
~J;ip GROUNDCOVEB DETAIL 

11..EP'°'lll E-XlSTlNO STONE
RETAING W'°'LLS Al'lO 
AOO STONE TO EXISTll'lG 
WALLS '°'S 11..EQUIR.EO· 
FIELD VERIFY 

~L 
arete' 3 ltd 
Oe1lgn grouo 

""~"""'-C.-t>'-. 
"'""'""""""'""" lO.-l•;.1;10.,.. 

708.l•1·'l•Oh 

"'" .. '""" 

PROPOSED 

LANDSCAPE 

PLAN 

PRAIRIE 
CROSSING 

PROFESSIONAL 
CENTRE 

FRANKFORT, IL 

LP-1 
mn•· on"' 

OR!GIN, O'-<lJ.<)<; 
~f.V D•TE· o\ • .,,m 

~CALE. ·~NOTED 

o :::io,,,.c.<•1001"m•l.m 
""'""""'"'f''<ll 

E.XH!f3!T A-2. 



"'"'"''""'"'"'"" -, ,.,.,c.,t 
"''"""~' """ __ _ 

••r• '"o' "'""'"" '""o n• ,.,.., nvu 
••"•to••",.''"""'--

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: 116"• r.o-

::::r: 

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: 118" • l'-0" 

""""""' '"'"CUI-----
o· .. •e•u 

PROPOSED EAST & WEST ELEVATIONS 
SCALE: l/B" • 1'·0" .. ~4' 

'lllrt'.. 

_JJlL 
are te' 3 ltd 
i:le11cn orouo 

''~'°"'''"'''c-:.-... tr....,Ptn. lln:::o O'JJA'1 
>:..·>'1·1'!-0<". 
'™·ll''ll.'.l'< ""'")<,,., 

PROPOSED 

BUILDING 
ELEVATIONS 

BUILDING #I 

PRAIRIE 
CROSSfNG 

PROFESSIONAL 
CENTRE 

FRANKFORT, IL 

EL-1 
IOI!•·. ~1'01 

OIUOIN: Dl·Ol.06 
llf.V o ... T'E: ll-l·Ol-n' 

~CM.I!: AS NOTED 
0 ~"'10<• lO<lf ••[ft' l \~ 

•11.•te1<Tl•npol'Cl 



........ , 
~,.,,.,,. "''0-

"'"""'"n .,,,., 
nu'"'"• "''""••me-. 

"r' ""°" '"''"'"" •<>•n 

""""""" """' --
'"'""""'"~·· """D'""""'''' "'""'"' -·-·-· 

'"'"' '""'"' '"'"'n'" -----

'""'""' ""'""""'""<>--

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: llB" • l"•O" ,. 

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: llH"- !".O" ,. 14' 

,,,. .... ~ ... · -·~ 
.. ,..,,,,..,""0-
.,. ... r.." '<"'"· 
r '"" ""U<•<'U ·- ··- ~, 

"'""""'n""" 
:~:·:,:;:"'.:'."''=:-.:::: 

~;~;~~~1::;• ~o " 

1;.:-·m· .. 

1{.'.''l.'\'I'. •. 

, k"li7! •. 

ROPOSED EAST ELEVATION PROPOSED WEiST ELEVATION 
SCALE: llB" • 1"-0" 

"' "' '" 
,. 

"' H" 

~lL 
arete' 3 ltd 
r.1e1IQn Qrouo 

'!"~Sa.""w....c,,,.,,~ 

,....,,."""""'""'"""'" 1t)!·l<l1·•l!.'.l~ 

!Ql>-Jt;.t;'ll~ 

..... l<O!'" 

PROPOSED 

BUILDING 
ELEVATIONS 

BUILDING #2 

PRAIRIE 
CROSSING 

PROFESSIONAL 
CENTRE 

FRANKFORT. IL 

'"' ,,, . .,. 

EL-2 
!Oil•' 0119~ 

OIUO!N, Ol-0:!-0~ 
REV.D"TE' l\.ll·06 

SCALE' AS NOT'l;D 
o ccr>n•C><T1oa1 ••£Trlllll 

iU 01...,.. O[!;t"'Vtt> 

EXfl!E31T !}-'-/ 



OFFICE BUILDING #1 NORTH & SOUTH ELE 
SCALE: llR" • \'.O" 

=~~======±==~===-==~==le=== 
I I 

OFFICE BUILDING #2 NORTH ELEVATION 
SCALF.: JIB"• 1'-0'' 

SIGN AGE 
MATRIX 
BUILDrNG l 

TYPICAL SlONAClE 

TOTAL 

BUILDING:! 

TVPIC ... L s1m; ... 0E 

TYi'. TENANT 

'l'OT.O.L 

ONE SIGN P!?.ll..'llTTED P!;R ~TORE fnONT ... OE- NOT TO 
EXCCEO !.O SQUMIE FOOT PE~ LINEAR fOOTOF EACH 

STOIU\FRONTllOE 

NOR TH & SOUTH ELEVA Tl ON 
LS FT. OP I ;.LLOWAQL~ MIEll \ ..... E ... U•INO 

STOIU!Fll.ONT 

'"'"""'" I IO!OQFT, I l05Q, l'T 

NORTH ELEVATION 
LN. FT.OF 

STOR..llFRClNT 

J!J'.O" 

ll0"-0" 

JOSQ. FT ~SQ. FT 

!j05Qo.H, 1050.H 

NO SIGNAGE ALLOWED ON THE 
SOUTH ELEVATION OF BUILDING #J. 

' I 

'" 

PL ASE NOTE 
!F~UILDING I BE UTILIZED AS A 
M LTl·TENANT BUTLDrNG SIGNAGE WILL 
N T BE ALLOVIED ON THE NORTH 
EL. VATION (FACTNG ROUTE JO) AND 
Sl~AGE CALCULATIONS AND Sn'LE 
SH\ULD MATCH THAT OF BUILDING 2 

__J)Jl_ 
arete' 3 ltd 
da11g11 grouo 

11 .. ~ ..,_,.,,,.... c"'°'"""' ,.._..,...,.....,, ..,,.,1 
10o!.J'1"'Wl<>" 
l"J&-J<;·l1"'.l~ 

C!'O'o.l<un 

PROPOSED 

TENANT 
SIGN AGE 

for 
BUILDINGS I 

& BUILDING 2 

PRAIRIE 
CROSSING 

PROFESSIONAL 
CENTRE 

FRANKFORT, IL 

SD-2 
JOU"' OflO' 

ORJQIN' I \..{l).OO 
!tEV. o;.TE' "4-0l-07 

sc;.LE; ;,s NOTED 

0 ~~'!'!'.!.1.o.;:_?"~ l ,,., 

EXH1t31T A·S 



!"" ·- ,,.,," ooom .. , I ,, ... ···-~·""""' ~......... ..., · I : I :::: : .. :::: :::.:: : .: I : 
"' ...,,_,,, ~ ... _,,,, ""''" ~<r> ...,. 

1;;.,.,.,.,.J·;, 

'",, , .... ,, .. ,._ .............. . ! ............. . 
.... ,.,,.,...,_,~ ..... ,,,_ ... ,,..,, .. . ,. ... _., .. ~ ........... , .... ,, ........... .. 

~lTf;~~.~~:: :: 
... ~ ............. ,. '" 

..... .... ,, ....... ,,, 
"'''"""'f....,..•M'I ····--· ... ·········---· .. 
~:~~('~I~.:. .. " 

1.'.:'.I t· I 

LIGHT FIXTURE A!B 
N;, 

LIGHT FIXTURE C 

LIGHT POLE DETAIL 

'"" 

N" 

DECORATIVE DETAIL 

---- - -

"\ 
"i 
.. J 

"l ··I ... 
i'~ \,, 

'"1 

NOTE· 

' "I'" 

, .. 

... 

:1 
\i 
'I 

... .. 

~] .. " :: 
"' "' . '" 

- ·1 .: 
CUT •OFF TIMER UOHT5 WILi. U~ LIT FROM OUfiK \JNT!l .. q 001.M 

PROPOSED PHOTOMETRlC PLAN 
20' 40' i 60' NORTH 

n !1~ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

B· 

\ ... 

\ ... 

!;<'"'"" ... 

:: :~ 

_JJlL_ 
mete' 3 ltd 
Ot!lllJll lllOUP 

\W5""""\li""C.-O... 

"-"""' ........ Ii>''' 
l'0~;.1;.l;i<J"" 

1"4·l<1·•1•n~. 

-•!=m 

PROPOSED 

PHOTOMETRIC 
PLAN 

PRAIRIE 
CROSSING 

PROFESSION Al 
CENTRE 

FRANKFORT, IL 

PH-1 
JOO•, OlH~ 

OllJ01N; 01>-n.06 
R..EV. OAT);; Ol·ll.01 

SC,o.LE' "5 NOT1m 

0 "'""""•" l'"'' ·~ J '" 'U.";>'"'•Cl!OV!D 



mschwarz
Received

























mschwarz
Received









mschwarz
Received





































mschwarz
Received



101

102

103

104

105

106 - 109

110

111

112

113

114 115
116

PRESERVE 2
COLUMNAR OAKS
WITH 4' HT SNOW

FENCE FOR
TREE PROTECTION

117

118
119

120 121

122

123

124
125

126

128

127

129 131

130
132

133

134

135

137

136
138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148
149

150
151

152

153

154

155

156

177

176

175

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

VERIFY IF TREES IN
BRUSH LINE ARE

INSIDE THE PROPERTY
LINE PRIOR TO

REMOVAL

182 183 184 185 186 187 188

181
180

179 178

LANDSCAPE PLAN
EEVERBROOK ACADEMY - FRANKFORT

LINCOLN HIGHWAY & WOLF RD
FRANKFORT, IL  60423

E. PRESERVATION TECHNIQUES

1. Prior to the development of any project,
temporary barriers shall be installed to protect and
preserve the existing vegetation.
a. Wooden lath snow fencing, brightly colored plastic
construction fencing, chain link fencing, or an
alternative barrier, shall be installed at the periphery
of the drip line of the tree or beyond to prevent
storage of materials or vehicles. Said fence or barrier
shall be a minimum of forty-eight inches (48”) in height
securely anchored to fence posts a minimum distance
of five feet on center.
2. Wherever a change of grade is planned, the trees
to be preserved shall be protected by a wall so as to
persevere the existing grade for the roots.
3. Wherever a change of grade is planned, the topsoil
shall be preserved for the new landscaping to be
installed, unless imported topsoil is used which meets
planting specifications as outlined in §158.06.
4. All grading and construction equipment shall be
forbidden from encroaching upon the drip line of any
tree.
5. Crushed limestone or any other material which may
be detrimental to trees shall not be dumped within
the drip line of any tree(s) nor shall be located at any
higher location where drainage toward the tree(s)
could adversely affect the health of said tree(s).
6. No materials or vehicles shall be stored, driven, or
parked within the drip line of any trees.
7. In the event that an underground utility line is to be
located within five feet (5’) of the trunk of a tree
designated for preservation, said utility line shall be
augured to prevent damage to the trees root system.
8. All trees to be preserved which have been
subjected to the construction activity within the drip
line should be reviewed by a qualified arborist and
appropriate actions performed per the
recommendation of the arborist. None of the trees
shall be topped, headed-back, skinned (removal of
interior branches), or climbed with spikes. All dead
wood shall be removed to reduce hazard.

F. ENFORCEMENT
1. In the event that trees are destroyed /
removed, leaving no physical evidence for
measurement, tree size in caliper inches will be
measured at the stump diameter.
2. In the event that a tree designated for
preservation is destroyed or razed during the
construction process or has been removed without
the approval of Village staff, each tree shall be
replaced in accordance with the applicable exchange
rates. A minimum of $500.00 per tree penalty shall
be assessed upon the owner of the property on which
the
trees were removed. A temporary work stoppage
shall commence until such time that the Village has
determined the number and size of tree (s)
destroyed. In addition to the fines, destroyed trees
must be replaced in accordance to replacement ratios
as mentioned above, by the next growing season.
Penalty see §158.99

Note: Trees in Brush Lines not located
on survey are estimated in location and
should be verified prior to final removal

mschwarz
Received



S
 E

 T
 T

 L
 E

 R
 S

  
 P

 O
 N

 D
D

 R
 I

 V
 E

L
 O

 T
   

 5
 4

P  R  A  I  R  I  E       C  R  O  S  S  I  N  G  S

L O T     2

L 
O

 T
   

  5

L 
O

 T
   

  6

P
 A

 R
 T

  
  
  
O

 F
  
  
 P

 A
 R

 C
 E

 L
  
  
2

L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y

L O T     
1

L 
O

 T
   

  7
P

 R
 A

 I 
R

 I 
E

   
  C

 R
 O

 S
 S

 I 
N

 G
 S

L O T    4 5

L O T    4 6

L O T    5 1

L O
 T

   
 5

 2

B E E C H E N     &     D I L L ' S      S E T T L E

R S     P O N D      P . U . D .

B E
 E

 C
 H

 E
 N

    
 &

    
 D

 I L
 L

 ' S
    

  S
 E

 T
 T

 L
 E

 R
 S

    
 P

 O
 N

 D
    

  P
 . U

 . D
 .

L O T   1

N E W
    

   L
 E N O X    

S T A T E

B A N K    
P H A S E    

 2

P A R C E L    
1

L O
 T

   
 5

 3

P A R T      O F     P A R C E L    3

3520

’

P
A

R
C

E
L
  
2

PARCEL  3

PARCEL  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.09' N'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED NOVEMBER 7, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. R2004049251 [24][24]

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IL ROUTE 30)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 2ND 5/8" IRON ROD 0.17' W'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD 0.31' E'LY & 0.09' N'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.08' E'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DETENTION EASEMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 7, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED JULY 22, 1997 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R1997-61234

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED JULY 22, 1997 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R1997-61234

AutoCAD SHX Text
"NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00 12'23" E)  328.31' (N 00°12'23" E)  328.31' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.20' E'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' B.S.L. (FROM FORMER CENTERLINE OF IL 30) [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E. [21][21]

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5' (1 ROD) WIDE TELECOM. EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 641267 [16][16]

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E. [21][21]

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED OCTOBER 16 2003 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-261229

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°29'41" W (N 89 21'36" W)  311.05' (N 89°21'36" W)  311.05' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00°12'23" E)103.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 87°57'10" E (S 89°54'07" E)60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°34'34" E (S 83 25'45" E)  252.80' (S 83°25'45" E)  252.80' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°54'36" E (S 00 14'07" W)  406.30' (S 00°14'07" W)  406.30' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. LINE OF THE E. HALF OF THE S.W. QUARTER OF SECITON 20-35-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. LINE OF THE W. HALF OF THE S.W. QUARTER OF SECITON 20-35-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°42'46" W9.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 86°10'02" W34.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CUT CROSS ON LINE & 3.00' W'LY OF EASEMENT ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CUT CROSS ON LINE AT EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF IL ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HWY) RIGHT-OF-WAY PER DOC. 546517

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF IL ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HWY) IMPROVEMENTS PER PLAT OF HIGHWAYS FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-016-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' A.E. PER DOC. R2002192064 [24][29][24][29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' A.E. PER DOC. R2002191084 [24][29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.D.E. & STORMWATER DETENTION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO: PURCHASER WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  PURCHASER WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE PURCHASER WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  AGREEMENT WITH THE AGREEMENT WITH THE  WITH THE WITH THE  THE THE VESTED OWNER; LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  OWNER; LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH OWNER; LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  LOAN AGREEMENT WITH LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  AGREEMENT WITH AGREEMENT WITH  WITH WITH THE PROPOSED INSURED; AND CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  WHICH IT IS BASED WERE WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  IT IS BASED WERE IT IS BASED WERE  IS BASED WERE IS BASED WERE  BASED WERE BASED WERE  WERE WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  REQUIREMENTS FOR REQUIREMENTS FOR  FOR FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  BY ALTA AND NSPS, BY ALTA AND NSPS,  ALTA AND NSPS, ALTA AND NSPS,  AND NSPS, AND NSPS,  NSPS, NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  A THEREOF. THE FIELD A THEREOF. THE FIELD  THEREOF. THE FIELD THEREOF. THE FIELD  THE FIELD THE FIELD  FIELD FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON JANUARY 27, 2022 DATE OF PLAT OR MAP: FEBRUARY 17, 2022 ______________________________________________ IL PROF LAND SURVEYOR #3520; EXP. NOVEMBER 30, 2022 DESIGN FIRM REG.#184.005510; EXP. APRIL 30, 2023 SEE SURVEYORS NOTES FOR DESCRIPTION AND LIMITATIONS OF TABLE A ITEMS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY. ORIGINAL SURVEY IS IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY CERTIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLANS, GRADING PLANS, FEMA CERTIFICATES AND MORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"WE GET CORNERS OTHER PEOPLE CUT!"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surveyor's email: mikeu@sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOS#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
557 CAPITAL DRIVE, LAKE ZURICH, ILLINOIS 60047

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 847.356.7539  FAX: 815.578.9647  www.sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYING, TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING, SITE STAKING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/16/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT LOT - LINCOLN HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
21627

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/17/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODIFIED NOTES/LABELS, ADDED FIRE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 40 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE SOUTHWEST THE SOUTHWEST  SOUTHWEST SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TO THE PLAT TO THE PLAT  THE PLAT THE PLAT  PLAT PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 8, 2002, AS DOCUMENT NO. R2002-192064 IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. PARCEL 2: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, S DEPARTMENT STORES,  DEPARTMENT STORES, DEPARTMENT STORES,  STORES, STORES, INC. A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  JANUARY 17, 2003 AS JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  17, 2003 AS 17, 2003 AS  2003 AS 2003 AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND   2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND 2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE DRIVEWAY AND THE DRIVEWAY AND  DRIVEWAY AND DRIVEWAY AND  AND AND ACCESS ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DOCUMENT. PARCEL 3: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AS TRUSTEE AS TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE TRUSTEE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  RECORDED MARCH 24, RECORDED MARCH 24,  MARCH 24, MARCH 24,  24, 24, 2004 AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  NEW LENOX STATE BANK NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LENOX STATE BANK LENOX STATE BANK  STATE BANK STATE BANK  BANK BANK PHASE 2, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-261 229, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL OVERVIEW LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE COMMITMENT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE TABLE A ITEMS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	MONUMENTS PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR MONUMENTS PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  AT ALL MAJOR AT ALL MAJOR  ALL MAJOR ALL MAJOR  MAJOR MAJOR CORNERS OF THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  OF THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY OF THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  MARKED OR REFERENCED BY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  OR REFERENCED BY OR REFERENCED BY  REFERENCED BY REFERENCED BY  BY BY EXISTING MONUMENTS OR WITNESSES IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE CORNER. 2.	THE ASSOCIATED PIN NUMBER FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS: 09-20-301-055 THE ASSOCIATED PIN NUMBER FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS: 09-20-301-055 THE ADDRESS FOR THE PROPERTY HAS NOT BEEN ASSIGNED PER THE WILL COUNTY ASSESSOR. 3.	ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  INSURANCE RATE MAP INSURANCE RATE MAP  RATE MAP RATE MAP  MAP MAP (FIRM), HAVING A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  HAVING A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF HAVING A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  EFFECTIVE DATE OF EFFECTIVE DATE OF  DATE OF DATE OF  OF OF FEBRUARY 15, 2019, THE SURVEYED PROPERTY LIES WITHIN AN AREA DESIGNATED AS	ZONE X ZONE X  X X (UNSHADED) WHICH IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  WHICH IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE WHICH IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  ANNUAL CHANCE ANNUAL CHANCE  CHANCE CHANCE FLOODPLAIN. THESE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  THESE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE THESE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  TO FLOODING IN THE TO FLOODING IN THE  FLOODING IN THE FLOODING IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE COMMUNITY OR ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  OR ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES OR ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  AREAS. THIS DOES AREAS. THIS DOES  THIS DOES THIS DOES  DOES DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT THE SURVEYED PROPERTY WILL OR WILL NOT FLOOD. 4.	THE GROSS LAND AREA OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 111,548.39 SQUARE FEET (2.561 ACRES ) THE GROSS LAND AREA OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 111,548.39 SQUARE FEET (2.561 ACRES±)7a.	NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. 8.	SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  ARE SHOWN ARE SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HEREON (IN ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  (IN ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 (IN ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  TO SECTION 5 TO SECTION 5  SECTION 5 SECTION 5  5 5 OF THE MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  THE MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) THE MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  LAND TITLE SURVEYS) LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  TITLE SURVEYS) TITLE SURVEYS)  SURVEYS) SURVEYS) LANDSCAPED AREAS ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  AREAS ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED AREAS ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  OR IDENTIFIED OR IDENTIFIED  IDENTIFIED IDENTIFIED HEREON IF NOT CLEARLY DEFINED BY SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES. 9.	NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. 14.	THE DISTANCE TO THE NEAREST INTERSECTING STREET IS INDICATED AND DIMENSIONED HEREON. THE DISTANCE TO THE NEAREST INTERSECTING STREET IS INDICATED AND DIMENSIONED HEREON. 19.	SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  LIABILITY INSURANCE; LIABILITY INSURANCE;  INSURANCE; INSURANCE; CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	DISTANCES ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE DISTANCES ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  BE ASSUMED BY SCALE BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  ASSUMED BY SCALE ASSUMED BY SCALE  BY SCALE BY SCALE  SCALE SCALE MEASUREMENT HEREON. DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  HEREON. DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE HEREON. DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  (456.67') ARE (456.67') ARE  ARE ARE RECORD OR DEED VALUES, NOT FIELD MEASURED. 2.	BEARINGS ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING BEARINGS ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  LOCATED AND MEASURED USING LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  AND MEASURED USING AND MEASURED USING  MEASURED USING MEASURED USING  USING USING TRIMBLE'S VIRTUAL REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  VIRTUAL REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF VIRTUAL REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  EAST ZONE), PLAT OF EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  ZONE), PLAT OF ZONE), PLAT OF  PLAT OF PLAT OF  OF OF HIGHWAYS FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  AND THE FINAL PLAT OF AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  THE FINAL PLAT OF THE FINAL PLAT OF  FINAL PLAT OF FINAL PLAT OF  PLAT OF PLAT OF  OF OF SUBDIVISION. 3.	MANHOLES, INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION MANHOLES, INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  FROM FIELD LOCATION FROM FIELD LOCATION  FIELD LOCATION FIELD LOCATION  LOCATION LOCATION OF SUCH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  SUCH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH SUCH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  IMPROVEMENTS WHICH IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  WHICH WHICH ARE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  SEARCH AND WALK SEARCH AND WALK  AND WALK AND WALK  WALK WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  OF THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE OF THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  AND MAY NOT BE AND MAY NOT BE  MAY NOT BE MAY NOT BE  NOT BE NOT BE  BE BE SHOWN HEREON, AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  HEREON, AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF HEREON, AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  THE EXTENT OF THE EXTENT OF  EXTENT OF EXTENT OF  OF OF UTILITIES SERVING OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  SERVING OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED SERVING OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  OBSERVATIONS NOTED OBSERVATIONS NOTED  NOTED NOTED HEREON, THIS SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  THIS SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE THIS SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  PRESENCE OR ABSENCE PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  OR ABSENCE OR ABSENCE  ABSENCE ABSENCE OF ANY SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  ANY SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED ANY SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  AND/OR CONTROLLED AND/OR CONTROLLED  CONTROLLED CONTROLLED UNDERGROUND EXPLORATORY EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  EXPLORATORY EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS EXPLORATORY EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  LOCATE MARKINGS IS LOCATE MARKINGS IS  MARKINGS IS MARKINGS IS  IS IS RECOMMENDED TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   AND UTILITY LINES.  AND UTILITY LINES.   UTILITY LINES.  UTILITY LINES.   LINES.  LINES.  CONTACT JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  OR PRIVATE UTILITY OR PRIVATE UTILITY  PRIVATE UTILITY PRIVATE UTILITY  UTILITY UTILITY LOCATING COMPANY FOR RECORDS OR SCHEDULING A LOCATE. 4.	ONLY THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND ONLY THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  AT TIME OF SURVEY AND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  TIME OF SURVEY AND TIME OF SURVEY AND  OF SURVEY AND OF SURVEY AND  SURVEY AND SURVEY AND  AND AND THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  SHOWN ON THE FACE OF SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  ON THE FACE OF ON THE FACE OF  THE FACE OF THE FACE OF  FACE OF FACE OF  OF OF THIS PLAT. LAWN SPRINKLER SYSTEM HEADS, IF ANY, ARE NOT SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY. 5.	THIS SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE THIS SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  IF SUCH ITEMS WERE IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  SUCH ITEMS WERE SUCH ITEMS WERE  ITEMS WERE ITEMS WERE  WERE WERE HIDDEN BY LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  BY LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH BY LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  WERE COVERED BY SUCH WERE COVERED BY SUCH  COVERED BY SUCH COVERED BY SUCH  BY SUCH BY SUCH  SUCH SUCH ITEMS AS DUMPSTERS, PALETTES, STOCK MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, TRAILERS OR OTHER OBJECTS. 6.	THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  PLAT ARE BASED ON THE PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  ARE BASED ON THE ARE BASED ON THE  BASED ON THE BASED ON THE  ON THE ON THE  THE THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  PROVIDED BY THE PROVIDED BY THE  BY THE BY THE  THE THE CLIENT. THE PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  THE PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS THE PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  BUT REFLECTS BUT REFLECTS  REFLECTS REFLECTS WHAT WAS SURVEYED. FOR OWNERSHIP, CONSULT YOUR TITLE COMPANY. 7.	COMPARE THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND COMPARE THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  BEFORE BUILDING, AND BEFORE BUILDING, AND  BUILDING, AND BUILDING, AND  AND AND IMMEDIATELY REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE SURVEYOR. 8.	APPARENT ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND APPARENT ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  WITH THE END OF A SOUND WITH THE END OF A SOUND  THE END OF A SOUND THE END OF A SOUND  END OF A SOUND END OF A SOUND  OF A SOUND OF A SOUND  A SOUND A SOUND  SOUND SOUND WALL EXTENDING OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  EXTENDING OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE EXTENDING OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  PROPERTY, THE STONE PROPERTY, THE STONE  THE STONE THE STONE  STONE STONE WALLS AND CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  AND CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING AND CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  A STONE FIRE PIT LYING A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  STONE FIRE PIT LYING STONE FIRE PIT LYING  FIRE PIT LYING FIRE PIT LYING  PIT LYING PIT LYING  LYING LYING ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY NEAR THE SOUTHERLY PROPERTY LINE, AS SHOWN HEREON. 9.	THERE IS NO VISIBLE EVIDENCE OF CEMETERIES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. THERE IS NO VISIBLE EVIDENCE OF CEMETERIES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. 10.	THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  BUT HAS INDIRECT BUT HAS INDIRECT  HAS INDIRECT HAS INDIRECT  INDIRECT INDIRECT ACCESS FROM U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  FROM U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS FROM U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  THROUGH EASEMENTS THROUGH EASEMENTS  EASEMENTS EASEMENTS PARTIALLY SHOWN, DEPICTED OR NOTED HEREON.  (SEE TITLE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) 11.	THE PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, THE PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  WITHOUT ANY GAPS, WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  ANY GAPS, ANY GAPS,  GAPS, GAPS, GORES OR OVERLAPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH MARKS: (NAVD88) SOURCE BENCH MARK: NGS MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  (SEE NGS DATA (SEE NGS DATA  NGS DATA NGS DATA  DATA DATA SHEET FOR A MORE DETAILED DESCRIPTION) ELEVATION=756.95 SITE BENCH MARK: SQUARE CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  WEST PROPERTY LINE AND WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  PROPERTY LINE AND PROPERTY LINE AND  LINE AND LINE AND  AND AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT BANK DRIVE-THRU. ELEVATION=733.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1 FOOT CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
  TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE/BRUSH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DECIDUOUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
  INVERT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RIM ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  ELECTRICAL METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  JULIE ELECTRIC MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DIRECTION (ie NORTHERLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLY,WLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= UTILITY & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RECORD/DEED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50.0')

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONSERVATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  CONIFEROUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CLUMP W/NUMBER-SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
= LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  EFFECTIVE DATE OF EFFECTIVE DATE OF  DATE OF DATE OF  OF OF JANUARY 24, 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  24, 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS 24, 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  SURVEY. THE NUMBERS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  THE NUMBERS THE NUMBERS  NUMBERS NUMBERS BELOW REFERENCE THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  REFERENCE THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL REFERENCE THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  1-13 ARE GENERAL 1-13 ARE GENERAL  ARE GENERAL ARE GENERAL  GENERAL GENERAL EXCEPTIONS OR NOTES FOR INFORMATION THAT ARE NOT SURVEY RELATED) 14.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  AND LIMITATIONS OF THE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  LIMITATIONS OF THE LIMITATIONS OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE TRUST UNDER WHICH TITLE TO THE LAND IS HELD. (NO DOCUMENT DISCLOSED OR PROVIDED FOR REVIEW.) 15.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO RIGHTS OF WAY FOR DRAINAGE TILES, DITCHES, 		THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO RIGHTS OF WAY FOR DRAINAGE TILES, DITCHES, 		FEEDERS, LATERALS AND UNDERGROUND PIPES, IF ANY. SEE SHEET 2 OF 2 FOR IMPROVEMENTS AND DRAINAGE. [16]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  RIGHTS INCIDENTAL RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  INCIDENTAL INCIDENTAL THERETO AS RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 641267. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 17.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  AS SHOWN IN THE AS SHOWN IN THE  SHOWN IN THE SHOWN IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  SURVEY RELATED. (SEE SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  RELATED. (SEE RELATED. (SEE  (SEE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 18.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  ANNEXATION AGREEMENT ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  AGREEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-101663. NO PLOTTABLE RESTRICTIONS. (SEE DOC. FOR PARTICULARS) [19-22]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  NOTES SET FORTH BY NOTES SET FORTH BY  SET FORTH BY SET FORTH BY  FORTH BY FORTH BY  BY BY THE FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION RECORDED AS DOC. NUMBER R2002-192064. (SEE DOC. FOR PARTICULARS) [23]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  CROSSINGS RECORDED AS CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  CENTER AERIAL CENTER AERIAL  AERIAL AERIAL OVERVIEW LOCATION MAP FOR ACCESS EASEMENT LOCATIONS) 24.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  CONDITIONS RELATING TO CONDITIONS RELATING TO  RELATING TO RELATING TO  TO TO EASEMENTS DESCRIBED AS PARCEL 2 AND 3 CONTAINED IN THE INSTRUMENT CREATING SAID EASEMENTS. 25.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  A CERTAIN ANNEXATION A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  CERTAIN ANNEXATION CERTAIN ANNEXATION  ANNEXATION ANNEXATION AGREEMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  BY THIS SURVEYOR BY THIS SURVEYOR  THIS SURVEYOR THIS SURVEYOR  SURVEYOR SURVEYOR (AGREEMENT LISTED IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  LISTED IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 LISTED IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  NUMBER R2002-19030 NUMBER R2002-19030  R2002-19030 R2002-19030 WHICH IS A MORTGAGE ON AN UNRELATED PARCEL IN WILL COUNTY). (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS)	 [26]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  AGREEMENT RECORDED AS AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  NUMBER R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, NUMBER R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  INGRESS, EGRESS, INGRESS, EGRESS,  EGRESS, EGRESS, PARKING AND UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  AND UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, AND UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  OF SHOPPING CENTER, OF SHOPPING CENTER,  SHOPPING CENTER, SHOPPING CENTER,  CENTER, CENTER, AND INCLUDING RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  INCLUDING RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE INCLUDING RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  PARTICULARS) (SEE PARTICULARS) (SEE  (SEE (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL OVERVIEW LOCATION MAP FOR LIMITS AND SIGN LOCATIONS) 27.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS R2002-191084 AND R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  AND R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE AND R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  R2002-191064 (SEE R2002-191064 (SEE  (SEE (SEE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) [28]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  R2002-191084 R2002-191084 AND R2003-261229. OFF-SITE EASEMENTS PARTIALLY SHOWN HEREON. (SEE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) [29]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  DOCUMENT NUMBERS DOCUMENT NUMBERS  NUMBERS NUMBERS R2002-192064, R2002-191084 AND R2003-261229. (SEE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) 30.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  OR RESTRICTIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS FOUND IN DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  IN DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR IN DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  (SEE DOCUMENT FOR (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  DOCUMENT FOR DOCUMENT FOR  FOR FOR PARTICULARS) 31.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  FOR DRAINAGE FOR DRAINAGE  DRAINAGE DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  OFF-SITE. (SEE OFF-SITE. (SEE  (SEE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 32.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  IN DOCUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  DOCUMENT RECORDED DOCUMENT RECORDED  RECORDED RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 33.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  RESTRICTION RECORDED AS RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005223019. (SEE EXCEPTION 24 ABOVE) (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS). 34.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  ORDINANCE NO. 2439, ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  NO. 2439, NO. 2439,  2439, 2439, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2008-024281. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LENOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS POINTS TO WOLF ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS POINTS TO IL30 (LINCOLN HWY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS TO EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. R200219184[29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE CROSSINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION EASEMENT PER DOC. R200219184

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LENOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
[24,29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
[24]

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOPPING CENTER PERIMETER [26]

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN #2 [26]

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN #1[26]

AutoCAD SHX Text
= PUBLIC UTILITY & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= PERMANENT ROAD EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.



L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y

’

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCH MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY OVERHANG W/COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIAN W/ATM & BANKING EQUIPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST ROAD SOUND WALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF WALL 5.1' W'LY & 10.3' S'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF CURB 2.1' E'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GUTTER 6.8' E'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GUTTER 4.7' E'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IL ROUTE 30)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSD

AutoCAD SHX Text
"NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00 12'23" E)  328.31' (N 00°12'23" E)  328.31' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°29'41" W  (N 89 21'36" W) 311.05'  (N 89°21'36" W) 311.05' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00°12'23" E)103.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 87°57'10" E (S 89°54'07" E)60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°34'34" E  (S 83 25'45" E)  252.80'  (S 83°25'45" E)  252.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°54'36" E  (S 00 14'07" W) 406.30'  (S 00°14'07" W) 406.30' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5' TELECOM. EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 641267

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' DIA. CONCRETE BLOCK FIRE PIT 3.8' N'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.2' S'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.4' S'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLANS, GRADING PLANS, FEMA CERTIFICATES AND MORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"WE GET CORNERS OTHER PEOPLE CUT!"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surveyor's email: mikeu@sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOS#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
557 CAPITAL DRIVE, LAKE ZURICH, ILLINOIS 60047

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 847.356.7539  FAX: 815.578.9647  www.sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYING, TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING, SITE STAKING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/16/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT LOT - LINCOLN HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
21627

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/17/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODIFIED NOTES/LABELS, ADDED FIRE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1 FOOT CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SPOUT TO DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSD

AutoCAD SHX Text
  TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE/BRUSH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DECIDUOUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
  INVERT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RIM ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  ELECTRICAL METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  JULIE ELECTRIC MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DIRECTION (ie NORTHERLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLY,WLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= UTILITY & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RECORD/DEED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50.0')

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONSERVATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  CONIFEROUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CLUMP W/NUMBER-SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
= LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE SOUTHWEST THE SOUTHWEST  SOUTHWEST SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TO THE PLAT TO THE PLAT  THE PLAT THE PLAT  PLAT PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 8, 2002, AS DOCUMENT NO. R2002-192064 IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. PARCEL 2: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, S DEPARTMENT STORES,  DEPARTMENT STORES, DEPARTMENT STORES,  STORES, STORES, INC. A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  JANUARY 17, 2003 AS JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  17, 2003 AS 17, 2003 AS  2003 AS 2003 AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND   2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND 2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE DRIVEWAY AND THE DRIVEWAY AND  DRIVEWAY AND DRIVEWAY AND  AND AND ACCESS ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DOCUMENT. PARCEL 3: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AS TRUSTEE AS TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE TRUSTEE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  RECORDED MARCH 24, RECORDED MARCH 24,  MARCH 24, MARCH 24,  24, 24, 2004 AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  NEW LENOX STATE BANK NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LENOX STATE BANK LENOX STATE BANK  STATE BANK STATE BANK  BANK BANK PHASE 2, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-261 229, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH MARKS: (NAVD88) SOURCE BENCH MARK: NGS MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  STEEL ROD IN STEEL ROD IN  ROD IN ROD IN  IN IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA SHEET FOR A MORE DETAILED DESCRIPTION) ELEVATION=756.95 SITE BENCH MARK: SQUARE CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  1.7' WEST OF THE WEST 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  WEST OF THE WEST WEST OF THE WEST  OF THE WEST OF THE WEST  THE WEST THE WEST  WEST WEST PROPERTY LINE AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  LINE AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT LINE AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  MEDIAN OF ADJACENT MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  OF ADJACENT OF ADJACENT  ADJACENT ADJACENT BANK DRIVE-THRU. ELEVATION=733.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 20 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
20



GENERAL SITE NOTES

LEGEND

PAVEMENT LEGEND

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAD
4" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
4" AGGREGATE BASE

PROPOSED GREEN SYNTHETIC TURF WITH CUSHION
SEE DETAILS ON AS2.0 AND SPECIFICATIONS.

PLAYGROUND KEY NOTES-

12'x12' SHADE PYRAMIDS1

PRESCHOOL PICNIC TABLES2

TODDLER TABLES3

S5

BASKETBALL HOOP - SEE DETAIL 7/AS-2.0. COORDINATE WITH TENANT VENDORS7

STORAGE SHED (BY TENANT) TYP. OF 2S8

2'x4' PLANTER BOXES WITH 3'x5' WALK CLEARANCES BY TENANTS9

PLAYGROUND GAME STRIPING BY G.C.S10

S6

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT. TYP.S4

PLAYGROUND MOUNDS - SEE DETAIL ON SHEET AS2.0

FUN TUNNEL BALL DROP- MOUNT TO 6' HIGH TO TOP OF THE RIM.

SITE NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF
CONSTRUCTION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING SAFE AND ADEQUATE WORKING
CONDITIONS THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION OF ALL SITE SETBACKS, EASEMENTS
AND DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION.

4. ALL CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LATEST STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

5. ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE SITE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

6. IF DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR FINDS ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS BETWEEN THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS INDICATED ON THE PLANS AND THE
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS OF THE SITE, OR ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS WITHIN THE PLANS OR IN
THE SITE LAYOUT AS PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER, IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR TO IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER. UNTIL AUTHORIZED TO PROCEED, ANY
WORK PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR AFTER SUCH A DISCOVERY WILL BE AT THE
CONTRACTOR'S SOLE RISK AND EXPENSE.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS SHALL BE USED FOR BUILDING STAKEOUT.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING NEW PLANTINGS
AND TURF AREA RESTORATION REQUIREMENTS, WITH THE LANDSCAPE PLANS. CONTRACTOR TO
ENSURE NO PLANTINGS ARE IN PLAY AREAS OR FENCED-IN AREAS.

9. CONSTRUCTION SURVEY AND STAKEOUT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.
10. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE MEASURED FROM FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB, OR EDGE OF

PAVEMENT TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
11. ALL CURB RADII ARE MEASURED AT THE FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
12. ALL NEW ASPHALT AND/OR CONCRETE PAVING SHALL MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT FLUSH.
13. CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF CONSTRUCTION LIMITS TO

ORIGINAL CONDITION OR BETTER.
14. CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR AT HIS EXPENSE ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING ASPHALT, CONCRETE,

CURBS, SIDEWALKS, ETC. RESULTING FROM CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC AND/OR OPERATIONS.
REPAIRS SHALL BE MADE TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER AND/OR ENGINEER.

15. ALL FIRE ACCESS LANES WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA SHALL REMAIN IN SERVICE, CLEAN OF
DEBRIS, AND ACCESSIBLE FOR USE BY EMERGENCY VEHICLES.

16. ALL DETECTABLE WARNING PLATES SHALL BE PREFORMED PLASTIC INSERTS UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

17. PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND INSTALLED PER THE PUBLIC
PLAYGROUND SAFETY HANDBOOK BY THE CONSUMER PRODUCT AND SAFETY COMMISSION AND
ASTM F2373-11 AND ASTM F1487-11, PLAYGROUND FENCE TO BE CONSTRUCTED AND INSTALLED
PER ASTM F2049-11.

18. GC SHALL REVIEW PLAYGROUND LAYOUT AND COORDINATE PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT LOCATION
WITH EQUIPMENT VENDOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

19. SIDEWALK SHALL CONFORM TO ACCESSIBILITY CODES A117.1 AND 1108.2
20. ENTRAPMENT: THE DISTANCE BETWEEN ANY OPPOSING SURFACES OR OBJECTS SHALL NOT BE

GREATER THAN 3 1/2" AND LESS THAN 9".
21. CONCRETE SIDEWALK AT BUILDING PERIMETER SHALL SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT AWAY FROM THE

BUILDING. THIS INCLUDES FROST SLABS AT DOOR EGRESS.

3/4" X 18 ga. PICKET
- COLOR: BLACK

POST SIZE VARIES
WITH HEIGHT

FINISH GRADE

12" DIA. MIN.
CONCRETE POST
FOOTING

1 1/2" RAIL

SCALE: N.T.S.
ORNAMENTAL FENCE2

AS1.0

SCALE: N.T.S.
ORNAMENTAL FENCE GATE1

AS1.0

8'-0" MAX.

4'-
0"

 O
R 

6'-
0"

SE
E 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
5'-

4"

3'-
0"

6"

3" AIRSPACE
BETWEEN PICKETS

2"
 M

AX
.

1'-0"
TYP.

1. COORDINATE PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT W/ VENDOR DRAWINGS FOR PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT
DETAILS, AND DESIGN/LAYOUT REQUIRED FOR INSTALLATION OF ALL PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT.
G.C. TO OBTAIN PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT DRAWINGS FROM VENDOR PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

2. ALL FENCE GATES TO HAVE SURFACE MOUNTED EXTERIOR PANIC HARDWARE. BASIS OF
DESIGN @ ALL CHAIN-LINK AND ALUMINUM GATES: ADVANTEX WITH AUDIBLE ALARM. SEE
DETAILS ON SHEET AS2.1

3. PROVIDE PROTECTIVE WRAP AROUND DOWNSPOUTS IN PLAYGROUND AREAS. SEE DETAILS ON
SHEET AS2.0.

4. PROVIDE ACCESS GATE @ PERIMETER. LOCATION TO BE APPROVED BY TENANT.
5. PROVIDE A 25'-0" SINGLE SECTION UNIT FLAG POLE CONSTRUCTED OF A MINIMUM 0.156" THICK

ALUMINUM IN A SATIN FINISH WITH A MINIMUM BASE DIAMETER OF 6" AND WITH AN INTERNAL
ROPE BASE HALYARD. THE CAP SHALL BE A SPUN ALUMINUM BALL AND COLLAR. THE POLE
SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH A LIGHTNING PROTECTION GROUND SLEEVE ASSEMBLY. PROVIDE
AND INSTALL A 4'-0" X 6'-0" UNITED STATES FLAG. COORDINATE LOCATION AND LIGHT FIXTURE
W/ CIVIL.

6. ANY SURFACE MOUNTED TRANSFORMERS, PUMPS, STORM WATER DEVICES, METERS, SHALL BE
LOCATED AWAY FROM FRONT ENTRANCE AND BUILDING/PLAYGROUND.

7. VEHICULAR PROTECTION REQUIRED WHERE DRIVE AISLES, PARKING LOTS OR ROADWAYS
BORDER PLAYGROUND AREAS. GUARD RAILS, BOULDERS, BOLLARDS OR WALLS AS REQUIRED
AND APPROVED BY TENANT.

8. STORM DRAINS ARE NOT ALLOWED IN THE PLAYGROUND AREAS. IF DRAINS HAVE TO BE
INSTLLED IN THESE AREAS DUE TO SITE CONSTRAINTS, THE DEVELOPER OR CIVIL SHALL
OBTAIN TENANT'S APPROVAL PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL TO THE AHJs.  DRAINS WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED IN SYNTHETIC TURF AREAS.

9. CATCH BASIN GRATE SLOTS SHALL HAVE 3 8" WIDTH MAX. WIDER GRATES ARE NOT ALLOWED.
10. ALL DOWNSPOUT ROOF LEADERS SHALL BE ROUTED UNDERGROUND INTO STORM SYSTEM.

SCALE: N.T.S.
BOLLARD TYPES3

AS1.0

VEHICULAR PROTECTION BOLLARD LEGEND:

PROPOSED 6' SEMI PRIVATE VINYL FENCE- WHITE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED 4' ORNAMENTAL ALUMINUM FENCE- BLACK

PROPOSED 4' VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE- BLACK

PROPOSED 6' VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE- BLACK

S20 S20 BOLLARD RATED FOR 20 MPH:
McCUE 4" CRASHCORE  BOLLARD WITH HDPE (PLASTIC) POST COVER, COLOR
GRAY: ORDER NO. 2B-601-121

S20-S S20 BOLLARD RATED FOR 20 MPH:
McCUE 4" CRASHCORE  BOLLARD WITH HDPE (PLASTIC) POST COVER, COLOR
GRAY, WITH CRASHCORE SIGN POST ADD-ON: ORDER NO. 2B-695-121-9S604.
(PROVIDE SIGN PLACARD PER PER CIVIL'S SPECIFICATIONS)

S15 S15 BOLLARD RATED FOR 15 MPH:
McCUE 4" CRASHCORE  BOLLARD WITH HDPE (PLASTIC) POST COVER, COLOR
GRAY: ORDER NO. 15B-601-121

3" MAX. 4'-0" MIN.
2" (HINGE CLEARANCE)

34
"-4

4"

4'-
0"

 O
R 

6'-
0"

SE
E 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
3'-

0"

FINISH GRADE

EXIT DEVICE, SEE NOTES
ON SHEET AS2.1

PROVIDE 10" H. KICK PLATE
ON PUSH SIDE OF GATE

6"

12" DIA. SONOTUBE FILLED
W/ CONCRETE, TYP.

1'-0"

2"
 M

AX
.

10
"

PROVIDE STEEL PLATE ON BOTH
SIDES OF FENCE AS NECESSARY
FOR MOUNTING EXIT DEVICE.

EQ. EQ.EQ.EQ.

1

23

4

2
AS2.0

8
AS2.0

MONUMENT SIGN, SEE
DETAIL 5&6/AS-2.1

25' FLAGPOLE

CONCRETE PAD

GREEN SYNTHETIC
TURF USED BY ALL
AGE GROUPS

GREEN
SYNTHETIC TURF
TO MEET 4' FALL
ZONE HEIGHT
REQUIREMENTS

PROPERTY LINE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

GREEN TOT TURF TO
MEET 4' FALL ZONE
HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS

4' H. VINYL COATED
CHAINLINK FENCE W/
TOP AND BOTTOM RAIL

GATE W/
HORSESHOE
LATCH

6' H. SEMI-PRIVATE
VINYL FENCE

STROLLER RAMP

DASHED LINE DESIGNATES
BICYCLE TRACK. SEE 9/AS2.0

BOLLARDS AT
STROLLER RAMP

PROPOSED PREMIUM PRESCHOOL
12,870 S.F.
1 STORY

MAIN
ENTRY

PRESCHOOL
PLAYGROUND

INFANT/TODDLER
PLAYGROUND

8
AS2.0

8'-4"

10'-8"

S4

S4

S4

S5

4
AS2.0

2
AS2.0

10
AS2.0

TYP.

S8

S9

S6

S10

S7

S2

S1

S10

1
AS2.1

REFER TO SHEET A0.1 FOR CODE DATA,
BUILDING OCCUPANCY, AND EGRESS
FROM BUILDING.

4' H. BLACK VINYL
COATED CHAIN LINK
GATE W/ PANIC
HARDWARE (NOT
ALARMED). SEE
DETAIL 13/AS-2.1

4' H. BLACK VINYL COATED
CHAIN LINK SECTION. GATE W/
ALARMED PANIC HARDWARE
AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 13/AS-2.1

LANDSCAPE AREALANDSCAPE AREA

PROVIDE VEHICULAR PROTECTION BOLLARDS (5'-6" O.C. MAX.).
SEE LEGEND ON THIS SHEET. CIVIL AND DEVELOPER TO
COORDINATE ACTUAL REQUIREMENTS AND DESIGN WITH
LEARNING CARE GROUP'S VEHICULAR PROTECTION
CONSULTANT PRIOR TO SITE SUBMITTAL TO THE AJHs.

1'-
6"

 T
O

CE
NT

ER
LI
NE

S15

S3

S1

S5

SLOPE 1/4" PER
FT. AWAY FROM
BUILDING. TYP.

SL
OP

E

PROVIDE FOOR DRAIN
IN ALCOVE AREA.
COORD. WITH CIVIL.

SLOPE

INSTALL SO THAT
CORNERS TOUCH
THE TURF. TYP.

TYP. U.N.O. SEE SPECS ON THIS SHEET.S20

SANITARY

S20-S4'-6"4'-6"

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
AR

EA

UTILITY SERVICE ALCOVE

SEE PLAN AND EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR GATE DETAILS.

GAS

ELEC.
SERVICE

FDC DOMESTIC AND FIRE
WATER SERVICE

6' H. BLACK VINYL COATED
CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE
W/ ALARMED PANIC HARDWARE
AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 13/AS-2.1

VI
NY

L P
RI

VA
CY

FE
NC

E
CH

AI
N 

LIN
K

FE
NC

E

18
'-1

"
17

1'-
7"

60'-7"

32'-7"

25'-0"

21
'-0

"

10
'-3

"

17'-5" 56'-3"

11
'-6

"
52

'-4
"

R9
'-7

"
TY

P.

R5'-9"S10

S10 S10

SLOPE

SE
MI

-P
RI

VA
TE

FE
NC

E
CH

AI
N 

LIN
K

FE
NC

E

4' H. BLACK VINYL COATED
CHAIN LINK SECTION. GATE W/
ALARMED PANIC HARDWARE
AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 13/AS-2.1

6' H. BLACK VINYL COATED
CHAIN LINK FENCE, TYP.

6' H. BLACK VINYL COATED
CHAIN LINK GATE W/
ALARMED PANIC HARDWARE
AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 13/AS-2.1

EA
SE

ME
NT

BU
ILD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

BUILDING SETBACK

BU
ILD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

BUILDING SETBACK

EASEMENT

EX. BANK
DRIVE THRU

EXISTING RETAINING
WALLS

CIVIL TO DETERMINE
IS SINGLE OR DOUBLE
CAPACITY DUMPSTER
IS REQUIRED

EVERBROOK
DIRECTION SIGN

6'-
6"

5'-
0"

S20-S

4' H. ORNAMENTAL FENCE & GATE W/
ALARMED PANIC HARDWARE AND
SELF-CLOSING HINGES. SEE DETAIL 1/AS1.0

59'-0"

5'-
7"

13
'-3

"

11'-11"

4
AS2.0

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

E
V

E
R

B
R

O
O

K
 A

C
A

D
E

M
Y

- F
R

A
N

K
FO

R
T

17
71

0 D
etr

oit
 A

ve
nu

e  
   L

ak
ew

oo
d, 

Oh
io 

 44
10

7
Ph

on
e (

21
6)

  5
21

-5
13

4  
    

   F
ax

 (2
16

) 5
21

-4
82

4
ww

w.
ad

aa
rch

ite
cts

.cc

LIN
CO

LN
 H

W
Y

FR
AN

KF
OR

T,
 IL

, 6
04

23

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

#
DA

TE
TY

PE
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

REVISIONS

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

, 
IN

C
.

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt 

(“I
ns

tru
me

nt 
of 

Se
rvi

ce
”) 

wa
s p

re
pa

re
d b

y A
DA

 A
rch

ite
cts

, In
c. 

(“A
DA

”) 
sp

ec
ific

all
y f

or
 th

e r
efe

re
nc

ed
 pr

oje
ct 

an
d i

s n
ot 

int
en

de
d f

or
 an

y o
the

r u
se

. A
DA

 re
tai

ns
 al

l c
om

mo
n l

aw
, s

tat
uto

ry 
an

d o
the

r
re

se
rve

d r
igh

ts,
 in

clu
din

g c
op

yri
gh

ts.
 T

his
 In

str
um

en
t o

f S
er

vic
e s

ha
ll n

ot 
be

 us
ed

 on
 ot

he
r p

ro
jec

ts,
 fo

r a
dd

itio
ns

 to
 th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

or
 fo

r c
om

ple
tio

n o
f th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

by
 ot

he
rs 

wi
tho

ut 
AD

A'
s p

rio
r w

ritt
en

 co
ns

en
t. A

ny
un

au
tho

riz
ed

 us
e o

f th
is 

Ins
tru

me
nt 

of 
Se

rvi
ce

 sh
all

 be
 at

 th
e U

se
r's

 so
le 

ris
k a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ilit
y t

o A
DA

. A
DA

 m
ak

es
 no

 w
ar

ra
nti

es
, e

xp
re

ss
 or

 im
pli

ed
, o

f m
er

ch
an

tab
ilit

y o
r o

f fi
tne

ss
 fo

r a
 pa

rtic
ula

r p
ur

po
se

.

03/01/2022

10

12
 K

 P
RO

TO
TY

PE
/M

OD
EL

SITE PLAN

AS1.0

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"
SITE PLAN1

AS1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

mschwarz
Received



mschwarz
Received



SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
LEFT ELEVATION1

A5.0

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
REAR ELEVATION2

A5.0

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
RIGHT ELEVATION3

A5.0

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
FRONT ELEVATION4

A5.0

EIFS-1

FACADE LIGHTING.
SEE ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS

RECESSED KNOX BOX: MODEL
3263, FINISH TO MATCH
STOREFRONT COLOR.

BR-1BR-1

BR-1

BR-1SD-1 WN-1SD-1 WN-1 BR-1BR-1

AS-1 AS-1

SD-1 GL-1

5
12

5
12

SD-1BR-1 EIFS-1WN-2 BR-1

BR-1

SD-1 WN-1 BR-1 SD-1 WN-1 BR-1

AS-1

5
12

ST-1ST-1ST-1

ST-1 ST-1 ST-1

ST-1 ST-1

EIFS-3

5
12

BR-1 BR-1 BR-1 BR-1 BR-1WN-1 WN-1

AS-1

AS-1

5
12

5
12

ST-1 BR-1 BR-1BR-1WN-1WN-1 ST-1 ST-1 ST-1 ST-1BR-1

EIFS-1

GU-1

ST-2 STONE SILL: READING ROCK, ROCKCAST, SMOOTH, COLOR: CREAM BUFF

ST-1 STONE: CULTURED STONE, COUNTRY LEDGESTONE, COLOR: CHARDONNAY

WN-1 VINYL WINDOWS, COLOR: ALMOND

GL-1 STOREFRONT GLAZING, COLOR: CLEAR

SD-1 FIBER CEMENT SIDING: NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD,
COLOR: CEDAR #EPC762F.  TRIM TO MATCH CEDAR PANEL COLOR.

1. ALL MATERIALS NOT LABELED ARE TYPICAL FOR ALL SIMILAR LOCATIONS.  QUESTIONS SHALL
BE REFERRED TO THE ARCHITECT.

2. EIFS SHALL BE DRYVIT, COMMERCIAL GRADE AS FOLLOWS:  GENESIS BASE COAT,
REINFORCING MESH BASE & FINISH COATS SHALL BE PROVIDED OVER EPS INSULATION BOARD,
MECHANICALLY FASTENED OVER DRAINAGE  MAT & WEATHER RESISTIVE BARRIER OVER
EXTERIOR SHEATHING.

3. ALL EIFS SHALL BE INSTALLED AS PER MFR'S RECOMMENDATIONS, INCLUDING ALL SEALANT,
FLASHING, AND JOINERY AT DISSIMILAR MATERIALS.  PROVIDE PANZER 20 REINFORCING MESH
TO 8'-0" A.F.F. (TYP.)

4. PROVIDE BLOCKING IN FACADE TO SUPPORT ALL BUILDING SIGNAGE.
5. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR LIGHTING INFORMATION.
6. GC SHALL PAINT ANY EXPOSED PIPES, CONDUITS, OR UTILITY BOXES THAT ARE VISIBLE ON

FROM THE SITE TO MATCH ADJACENT BUILDING EXTERIOR FINISH.

TAG DESCRIPTION

EXTERIOR FINISH LEGEND

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS GENERAL NOTES

AS-1 ASPHALT SHINGLES: TIMBERLINE HD, COLOR: WEATHERED WOOD

TRUSS BEARING
@ 12'-0" A.F.F.

TRUSS BEARING
@ 12'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@ ±26'-4" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@ 2'-8" A.F.F.

FIN FLOOR
@ 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@ 2'-8" A.F.F.

FIN FLOOR
@ 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@ 22'-8" A.F.F.

T.O. CANOPY
@ +/-13'-9" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@ 2'-8" A.F.F.

FIN FLOOR
@ 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@ +/-26'-4" A.F.F.

T.O. JOIST
@ 15'-4" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@ ±26'-4" A.F.F.

A 21st Century Preschool

A 21st Century Preschool

# # # #

TRUSS BEARING
@ 12'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@ 2'-8" A.F.F.

FIN FLOOR
@ 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@ ±26'-4" A.F.F.

7
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

5
12

ST-2

WN-2 CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

AS-1

EIFS-3 AS-1

PM-1

EGRESS LIGHTING.
SEE ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS, TYP.

COMPOSITE LUMBER RAILING.
COLOR SIMILAR TO MATCH
PAC-CLAD AGED BRONZE, TYP.

PRE-FINISHED FASCIA.
COLOR TO MATCH PAC-CLAD
SIERRA TAN, TYP.

EXTERIOR
LIGHTING,
TYP.

PRE-FINISHED FASCIA.
COLOR TO MATCH PAC-CLAD
SIERRA TAN, TYP.

ST-2

ST-2

ST-2

EIFS-2 EIFS: DRYVIT, OUTSULATION, FINISH: SANDPEBBLE DPR,
COLOR: #142ST SPECTRUM BROWN

EIFS-2

EIFS-2

BOTH SIDES
OF SOFFIT

BOTH SIDES
OF SOFFIT

VENTED VINYL SOFFIT:  STANDARD COLOR TO MATCH BUILDING FASCIA BD.
(TAN COLOR) AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLESFT

SFT

SFT

SFT

SFT

WN-1
EIFS-2

EIFS-2

10
'-9

"

10
'-9

"

SOFFIT

SOFFIT

SFT

PAINT BOTH SIDES OF EXTERIOR H.M. DOORS AND FRAMES COLOR: TO MATCH
SW 7531 CANVAS TAN.

DOORS &
FRAMES

EIFS-3 EIFS: DRYVIT, OUTSULATION, FINISH: SANDPEBBLE DPR,
COLOR: #452ST STORMY NITE

PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM
GUTTER, FASCIA, AND
DOWNSPOUT. SEE FINISH
SCHEDULE, TYP.

SILL STONE: REFER TO
FOUNDATION DETAILS FOR
SPECIFICATIONS. TYP.

GU-1

PAINT TO
MATCH EIFS-3

PAINT TO
MATCH EIFS-3

(3) SIDES

(3) SIDES
3'-

6"

2'-0"

10"

COORDINATE BUILDING
NUMBER SIGN (RAISED
LETTERS) WITH VENDOR

4'-
10

"

BUILDING SIGN:
COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION
WITH SIGN VENDOR

5
A5.0

9'-
10

" T
YP

.

10
'-0

" T
YP

.

℄

PRE FINISHED METAL TRIM AND FLASHING: COLOR TO MATCH
ADJACENT FINISH AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE, U.N.O.

PRE FINISHED ALUM GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTS, COLOR TO MATCH
FASCIA. (PAD-CLAD SIERRA TAN)

3
A5.0

1
A5.0

4
A5.0

2
A5.0

KEY PLAN
SCALE: N.T.S.

N

ALL SILL CORNERS IN
PLAYGROUND FENCED AREAS
SHALL BE CHAMFERED, TYP.

3'-
8"

6"

WALL MOUNTED KEY BOX-
MASTER LOCK 5423D FOR
TENANT'S STAFF ACCESS.

NICHIHA JOINT, TYP.

NICHIHA JOINT, TYP.

BR-1

EIFS: DRYVIT, OUTSULATION, FINISH: SANDPEBBLE DPR,
COLOR: #108 MANOR WHITE

PROVIDE PADLOCK TO
LOCK DOORS CLOSED

2"X2" WELDED STEEL FRAME AND
CROSS MEMBER, PAINTED TO
MATCH CEDAR FINISH COLOR.

6" WIDE COMPOSITE WD. SLATS SIM. TO
TREX TRANSCEND- COLOR "TIKI TORCH"
(W/ 1/4" GAPS) SECURED TO METAL
FRAME. DESIGN INTENT IS TO MATCH
SD-1 AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE.

PROVIDE (3) HEAVY DUTY
EXTERIOR HINGES PER DOOR
LEAF.

3"X3" POSTS DOWN TO
BUILDING FOUNDATION. PAINT
TO MATCH FENCE SLAT COLOR.

LINE OF GRADE

LINE OF GRADE

EXTEND FINISH TO
FOUNDATION SILL BELOW

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"
GATE ELEVATION5

A5.0

DROP RODS AT
BOTH GATES

7'-
4"

2"COORDINATE POST
FOUNDATION WITH

BUILDING AS REQ'D.

8"

GATE POST

GATE

SECURE TO POST TO
BUILDING STRUCTURE

THROUGH EXTERIOR FINISH.

WATER TABLE TO WRAP CONER
AND STOP AT POST LOCATION.

PLAN VIEW

E
V

E
R

B
R

O
O

K
 A

C
A

D
E

M
Y

- F
R

A
N

K
FO

R
T

17
71

0 D
etr

oit
 A

ve
nu

e  
   L

ak
ew

oo
d, 

Oh
io 

 44
10

7
Ph

on
e (

21
6)

  5
21

-5
13

4  
    

   F
ax

 (2
16

) 5
21

-4
82

4
ww

w.
ad

aa
rch

ite
cts

.cc

LIN
CO

LN
 H

W
Y

FR
AN

KF
OR

T,
 IL

, 6
04

23

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

#
DA

TE
TY

PE
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

REVISIONS

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

, 
IN

C
.

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt 

(“I
ns

tru
me

nt 
of 

Se
rvi

ce
”) 

wa
s p

re
pa

re
d b

y A
DA

 A
rch

ite
cts

, In
c. 

(“A
DA

”) 
sp

ec
ific

all
y f

or
 th

e r
efe

re
nc

ed
 pr

oje
ct 

an
d i

s n
ot 

int
en

de
d f

or
 an

y o
the

r u
se

. A
DA

 re
tai

ns
 al

l c
om

mo
n l

aw
, s

tat
uto

ry 
an

d o
the

r
re

se
rve

d r
igh

ts,
 in

clu
din

g c
op

yri
gh

ts.
 T

his
 In

str
um

en
t o

f S
er

vic
e s

ha
ll n

ot 
be

 us
ed

 on
 ot

he
r p

ro
jec

ts,
 fo

r a
dd

itio
ns

 to
 th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

or
 fo

r c
om

ple
tio

n o
f th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

by
 ot

he
rs 

wi
tho

ut 
AD

A'
s p

rio
r w

ritt
en

 co
ns

en
t. A

ny
un

au
tho

riz
ed

 us
e o

f th
is 

Ins
tru

me
nt 

of 
Se

rvi
ce

 sh
all

 be
 at

 th
e U

se
r's

 so
le 

ris
k a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ilit
y t

o A
DA

. A
DA

 m
ak

es
 no

 w
ar

ra
nti

es
, e

xp
re

ss
 or

 im
pli

ed
, o

f m
er

ch
an

tab
ilit

y o
r o

f fi
tne

ss
 fo

r a
 pa

rtic
ula

r p
ur

po
se

.

03/01/2022

10

12
 K

 P
RO

TO
TY

PE
/M

OD
EL

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A5.0

PRELIMINARY

3/2/22

BRICK: THIN BRICK
COLOR: SIMILAR TO ADJACENT BMO HARRIS BANK

mschwarz
Received



mschwarz
Received







AS-1

SD-1PM-1

BK-1

ST-1

WHITE SEMI-PRIVATE
FENCE

VINYL COATED
CHAIN LINK FENCE

ORNAMENTAL
FENCE

EIFS-1 EIFS-2

ST-2

EIFS-3

EIFS-1

GU-1

ST-2 STONE SILL: READING ROCK, ROCKCAST, SMOOTH, COLOR: CREAM BUFF

ST-1 STONE: CULTURED STONE, COUNTRY LEDGESTONE, COLOR: CHARDONNAY

WN-1 VINYL WINDOWS, COLOR: ALMOND

GL-1 STOREFRONT GLAZING, COLOR: CLEAR

SD-1 FIBER CEMENT SIDING: NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD,
COLOR: CEDAR #EPC762F.  TRIM TO MATCH CEDAR PANEL COLOR.

TAG DESCRIPTION

EXTERIOR FINISH LEGEND

AS-1 ASPHALT SHINGLES: TIMBERLINE HD, COLOR: WEATHERED WOOD

WN-2 CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

PM-1

BRICK: THIN BRICK
COLOR: SIMILAR TO ADJACENT BMO HARRIS BANK

EIFS-2 EIFS: DRYVIT, OUTSULATION, FINISH: SANDPEBBLE DPR,
COLOR: #142ST SPECTRUM BROWN

VENTED VINYL SOFFIT:  STANDARD COLOR TO MATCH BUILDING FASCIA BD.
(TAN COLOR) AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLESFT

PAINT BOTH SIDES OF EXTERIOR H.M. DOORS AND FRAMES COLOR: TO MATCH
SW 7531 CANVAS TAN.

DOORS &
FRAMES

EIFS-3 EIFS: DRYVIT, OUTSULATION, FINISH: SANDPEBBLE DPR,
COLOR: #452ST STORMY NITE

PRE FINISHED METAL TRIM AND FLASHING: COLOR TO MATCH
ADJACENT FINISH AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE, U.N.O.

PRE FINISHED ALUM GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTS, COLOR TO MATCH
FASCIA. (PAD-CLAD SIERRA TAN)

BR-1

EIFS: DRYVIT, OUTSULATION, FINISH: SANDPEBBLE DPR,
COLOR: #108 MANOR WHITE

E
V

E
R

B
R

O
O

K
 A

C
A

D
E

M
Y

- F
R

A
N

K
FO

R
T

17
71

0 D
etr

oit
 A

ve
nu

e  
   L

ak
ew

oo
d, 

Oh
io 

 44
10

7
Ph

on
e (

21
6)

  5
21

-5
13

4  
    

   F
ax

 (2
16

) 5
21

-4
82

4
ww

w.
ad

aa
rch

ite
cts

.cc

LIN
CO

LN
 H

W
Y

FR
AN

KF
OR

T,
 IL

, 6
04

23

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

#
DA

TE
TY

PE
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

REVISIONS

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

, 
IN

C
.

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt 

(“I
ns

tru
me

nt 
of 

Se
rvi

ce
”) 

wa
s p

re
pa

re
d b

y A
DA

 A
rch

ite
cts

, In
c. 

(“A
DA

”) 
sp

ec
ific

all
y f

or
 th

e r
efe

re
nc

ed
 pr

oje
ct 

an
d i

s n
ot 

int
en

de
d f

or
 an

y o
the

r u
se

. A
DA

 re
tai

ns
 al

l c
om

mo
n l

aw
, s

tat
uto

ry 
an

d o
the

r
re

se
rve

d r
igh

ts,
 in

clu
din

g c
op

yri
gh

ts.
 T

his
 In

str
um

en
t o

f S
er

vic
e s

ha
ll n

ot 
be

 us
ed

 on
 ot

he
r p

ro
jec

ts,
 fo

r a
dd

itio
ns

 to
 th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

or
 fo

r c
om

ple
tio

n o
f th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

by
 ot

he
rs 

wi
tho

ut 
AD

A'
s p

rio
r w

ritt
en

 co
ns

en
t. A

ny
un

au
tho

riz
ed

 us
e o

f th
is 

Ins
tru

me
nt 

of 
Se

rvi
ce

 sh
all

 be
 at

 th
e U

se
r's

 so
le 

ris
k a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ilit
y t

o A
DA

. A
DA

 m
ak

es
 no

 w
ar

ra
nti

es
, e

xp
re

ss
 or

 im
pli

ed
, o

f m
er

ch
an

tab
ilit

y o
r o

f fi
tne

ss
 fo

r a
 pa

rtic
ula

r p
ur

po
se

.

03/01/2022

10

12
 K

 P
RO

TO
TY

PE
/M

OD
EL

mschwarz
Received



1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                     June 9, 2022 

 
Project: Rhumbar 
Meeting Type:  Workshop  
Requests: Special Use for a full-service restaurant with liquor sales; Special Use for outdoor seating; 

Major Change to the Brookside Commons Office Centre PUD (amending Ordinance No. 1895 
which granted a Special Use for a Planned Development in 2002) 

Location: 10211 W. Lincoln Highway 
Applicant:  Joji Tirumalareddy, Tulips Chicago LLC dba Rhumbar 
Prop. Owner:  Medha Teja LLC-Frankfort 
Consultants:  William Warman, Architect  
Representative: David Bejgiert, Attorney   
Report By:  Michael J. Schwarz, AICP 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 1.3 acres (56,628 SF)                                                              Figure 1: Location Map PIN(s):
 19-09-21-304-021-0000 
Existing Zoning:  B4 Office District, PUD 
Prop.  Zoning: B4 Office District, PUD, with a Special Use 
 for a Full-Service Restaurant with Liquor 

Sales; 
 Special Use for Outdoor Seating  
Building(s) / Lot(s): 1 building (7,061 SF) / 1 lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Restaurant General Commercial B4 PUD 

North  Residential 
 

Single-Family 
Residential 

R-2 

South  Office General Commercial   B4 PUD 

East Office  General Commercial B4 PUD 

West Restaurant  General Commercial B4 PUD 

 
Project Summary  
 
The applicant, Joji Tirumalareddy, has filed an application requesting approval of a Special Use for a full-service 
restaurant with liquor sales; a Special Use for outdoor seating; and a Major Change to the Brookside commons Office 
Centre PUD (amending Ordinance No. 1895 which granted a Special Use for a Planned Development in 2002), for 
the subject property located at 10211 W. Lincoln Highway.  Joji Tirumalreddy holds 100 percent interest in Tulips 
Chicago LLC doing business as Rhumbar.  Medha Teja LLC is the real estate company holding the ownership of the 
building.  Tulips Chicago LLC is leasing the property from Medha Teja LLC. 
 
The applicant proposes to open a new restaurant to be named Rhumbar.  The subject building was most recently 
occupied by Simply Smokin BBQ however has been vacant for many years.  In 2015, the same applicant requested 
and was granted these same requests but was not granted a liquor license and never opened the restaurant.  On 
October 5, 2015, the Village Board approved Ordinance No. 2990 which granted a Special Use for a full-service 
restaurant with liquor sales; Ordinance No. 2991 which granted a Special Use for outdoor seating; and Ordinance 



2 

No. 2992 which granted a Major Change to the Brookside Commons Office Centre PUD.  Given that the Special Uses 
never commenced on the property, the applicant must re-apply and again go through the Village’s review process.  
At this time, the applicant is also proposing to add a small addition to near the southwest corner of the building to 
add an exterior cooler, as well as construct a new covered vestibule at the northeast corner of the building. 
 

Attachments 
1. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
2. Site Photos taken on 5.19.22 
3. Site Plan, Floor Plans and Building Elevations dated 4.29.22 received 4.29.22 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 
Full-Service Restaurant with Liquor Sales 

• The sale of liquor is typical in connection with full-service restaurants in Frankfort. 
 

• The Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance contains several special use categories addressing a wide range 
of liquor sales operations, each with their own corresponding standards. 
 

• Rhumbar is classified as a full-service restaurant with liquor sales and is subject to the following use 
standards: 
 

1. Bar and lounge areas within the restaurant shall not contain more than 25% of the total number 
of seats located within the premises nor shall they exceed 25% of the total customer floor area 
(Likely complies but will need to be confirmed).  A total of 154 seats are labeled on the first floor 
and 80 seats are labeled on the second (mezzanine) floor.  The project architect must confirm the 
bar floor area versus the restaurant floor area. 

2. Bar and lounge areas within the restaurant shall be reasonably delineated from the dining area by 
a wall, partition or similar permanent and physical improvement (Likely complies but will need to 
be confirmed).  Floorplan is not clear regarding proposed new mezzanine walls versus new first 
floor walls.   

3. Amusement devices are not permitted (Complies - none proposed). 

4. Electronic video displays and their accompanying audio, including but not limited to televisions 
and projection screens, shall not be located or transmitted outside of the dedicated bar or lounge 
area (Complies – all televisions and their sound will be limited to the dedicated bar area). 

5. All menu items and specials shall be available until one hour prior to closing and shall be prepared 
and cooked by an on-site kitchen staff (Complies - all food will available until close).   

• Significant interior renovation is proposed in order to comply with the standards for this Special Use, as the  
existing bar is centrally located and not delineated from the dining area. 
 

• The applicant’s 2015 liquor license request included a request for live entertainment.  The 2015 plans 
depicted a 5’ x 7’ stage in the northwest corner of the bar area.  No such stage is depicted on the proposed 
floor plan. 
 

• The subject property was designed and intended for restaurant use as part of the PUD approval for the 
original Brookside Commons Office Complex.  All previous tenants have used the building as a restaurant. 
 

• Previous restaurant tenants have provided liquor sales at this location. 
 



3 

 
 

• During the 2015 workshop meeting Commissioners discussed parking availability in the immediate area 
noting that daytime parking is limited.  The eastern portion of the Brookside Commons Office complex 
contains 6 office buildings and 2 restaurants which together share 123 parking spaces.  Below is a 
breakdown of Village ordinance requirements based on use and square footage: 
 
 

Use Square Footage Ordinance Provision Required Parking 
Office 25,500 5 / 1,000 sq. ft.  127 

Restaurant 9,843 10 / 1,000 sq. ft.  98 

  total required 225 
 

• Although technically deficient with respect to ordinance requirements (225 spaces required / 123 provided) 
the original PUD for the Brookside Commons Office development took into consideration shared parking 
opportunities and offset peak hours of operation.  Whereas the office users utilize the majority of the 
parking during the weekdays, restaurants typically utilize the parking during the evenings and on weekends. 
 

• Despite shared parking opportunities it is reasonable to assume that restaurant parking availability will be 
limited during the late afternoon and early evening hours on weekdays where restaurant and office hours 
overlap. 
 

• Commissioners are encouraged to consider that that any use of the vacant building will increase parking 
demand beyond present day observations.  If the subject building was converted to an office use, overall 
parking requirements would be reduced to 192 spaces however more of the parking would be in demand 
during the weekday daytime hours and any shared parking / offset peak hour efficiencies would be reduced 
or eliminated. 
 

Extended Hours 

• Village ordinance limits the permissible hours of operation for commercial businesses to the hours of 7:00 
am to 11:00 pm. Establishments that operate outside of those hours must be approved to do so through a 
Special Use Permit. 

 
• The applicant has not applied for extended hours of operation at this time. 

 
• Following the 2015 workshop meeting the applicant agreed to limit his requested hours of operation to 

11:00 pm during the week and 12:00 pm on Friday and Saturdays only.  The initial 2015 proposal 
contemplated 1:00 am daily operation. 
 

• The 2015 staff report noted that the Village previously approved extended hours of operation until 12:00 
am or later for several full-service restaurants with liquor sales including Jameson’s, Tommy Nevins (since 
closed), Buffalo Wild Wings, Francesca’s, and La Dolce Vita. 
 

• None of the previous restaurant tenants at this location had requested extended hours of operation. 
 

Outdoor Seating  
 

• Outdoor seating areas require approval of a Special Use within the B4 zoning district.  
 

• The applicant intends to provide outdoor seating on the existing concrete patio area north and east of the 
primary entrance. 
 

• The 2015 Site Plan reflected thirty-six seats in the proposed outdoor seating area (68 seats initially were 
proposed). 



4 

 
• Village ordinance requires that outdoor seating areas must be enclosed by a fence or wall with a minimum 

height of 3’ where liquor sales are provided.  The applicant previously proposed to install a 4’ ornamental 
iron fence enclosing the entire outdoor seating area.   
 

• At the eastern end of the outdoor seating area the proposed fence would have extended to the edge of the 
parking lot.  At the 2015 workshop meeting Commissioners requested the fence be shifted ±8’ to the west 
so as to allow use of the existing customer drop off / pickup area and limit potential maintenance issues 
due to vehicular damage.  Staff is requesting that the applicant submit a Site Plan to depict the proposed 
fence location. 
 

• Due to the proposed liquor sales and the outdoor seating area’s proximity to residential properties (+ 270’ 
south / ±180’ north), staff recommends the Commission discuss limiting the hours of the outdoor seating 
area and prohibiting live entertainment and condition any approvals accordingly. 
 

• The Village of Frankfort zoning ordinance establishes a maximum sound level of 55 decibels measured at 
the property lines of commercial development.  As a point of comparison 55 decibels is comparable to a 
normal human conversation or the hum of an electrical transformer from 100’ away.  Staff recommends 
any outdoor music comply with this requirement as a condition of approval.  
 

• The proposed outdoor area is not expected to significantly increase parking demand and is seasonal in 
nature. 

 
Major Change to a Planned Unit Development 
 

• The existing building has been vacant for many years and as a result has not been properly maintained. 
 

• The following site changes require approval of a Major Change to a PUD:  installation of a wrought iron 
enclosure for the outdoor seating area, the proposed new vestibule near the northeast corner of the 
building, the proposed new exterior cooler addition near the southwest corner of the building, and a new 
door (bus station access) to the outdoor seating area on the north side of the building. 
 

• The applicant proposes to repaint the existing building as well as the standing seam metal roofing.   
 

• The E.I.F.S entrance tower element is deteriorating and needs to be removed and rebuilt.  The 2015 
proposed Building Elevations depicted stone veneer on the new vestibule to comply with current 
commercial building standards which require masonry construction.  At this time, no such stone veneer is 
depicted on the currently proposed Building Elevations.  The new vestibule would be an aluminum and glass 
storefront.  The new exterior cooler addition would include a new cement fiber board wall panel with a 
brick pattern installed over a Tyvek membrane. 
 

• No signage details were provided at the time of this report.  The applicant will comply with sign ordinance 
requirements. 

 
Standards for Planned Unit Developments  
 
For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section F of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance refers to Planned 
Unit Developments (refer to complete Article 3 attached). Part 4 of said Section F refers to the review standards the 
must be considered. 
 
In granting or withholding approval of Preliminary Plans and Final Plans, the Plan Commission and the Village Board 
shall consider the extent to which the application fulfills the requirements of this Ordinance and the following 
standards:  
 

a. The plan is designed to protect the public health, welfare, and safety.  
 



5 

b. The proposed development does not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 
immediate area.  
 

c. The plan provides for protection of the aesthetic and function of the natural environment, which shall 
include, but not be limited to, flood plains, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds, wetlands, soil and geologic 
characteristics, air quality, vegetation, woodlands, and steep slopes.  
 

d. The plan provides for and ensures the preservation of adequate recreational amenities and common open 
spaces.  
 

e. Residential use areas may provide a variety of housing types to achieve a balanced neighborhood.  
 

f. The planned unit development provides land area to accommodate cultural, educational, recreational, 
and other public and quasi-public activities to serve the needs of the residents thereof.  
 

g. The proposed development provide for the orderly and creative arrangement of all land uses with respect 
to each other and to the entire Village.  
 

Standards for Special Uses  
 

For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use request.  
 
The Plan Commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing plans and 
specifications for the proposed special use, which shall remain a part of the permanent record of the Plan 
Commission. The Plan Commission shall submit same, together with its recommendation to the Village Board for 
final action. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find:  
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, 
the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood.  
 

c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided.  
 

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which 
it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant 
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission.  

 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.04

1: 1,128

0 Miles

10211 W. Lincoln Highway

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

6/1/2022 Date:

0.02

Address Points

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships



Site Photos – 10211 W. Lincoln Highway (May 19, 2022) 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 










	June 9, 2022
	June 9, 2022 Agenda Packet
	May 26, 2022
	PC Minutes 5.26.22 DRAFT
	A. Approval of the Minutes from May 12, 2022
	B. Plat Approval: Lots 4, 5 & 6 Original Town of Frankfort – Gutschenritter Resubdivision

	Binder1-Homestead
	Staff Report 6.9.22
	Aerial Exhibit
	APPROVED VB PLANS 11.2.20-compressed
	Final Plat 5.31.22

	Binder1 - 170 Vail
	Staff Report for PC-ZBA PUBLIC HEARING 6-9-22
	Findings of Fact - Applicant Responses
	Aerial Photo
	Binder1 two per page
	22-153 SITE PLAN-170 VAIL DRIVE_rev 5-25-2022
	22019_Lamarche Residence 4.28.22
	Findings of Fact_Variation Standards_Commissioners

	Binder1-Abe Lincoln
	Binder1-Abe Lincoln
	Staff Report 6.9.22 (workshop) Abe Lincoln
	GIS aerial 1-5000
	GIS aerial 1-1500
	GIS zoning 1-8000
	GIS zoning 1-5000
	Tax Map
	FEMA map zoomed in
	NWI Map
	Robinson review 3.25.22
	Building renderings - ALL
	Untitled 1
	Untitled 2
	Untitled 3
	Untitled 4
	Untitled 5
	Untitled 6

	Preliminary Engineering Plans 2.9.22 (excerpt)

	Pics 2 per page

	Binder1-Everbrook
	Staff Report for PC-ZBA WORKSHOP 6-9-22
	Aerial Photo - Lot 1 in New Lenox State Bank Subdivision
	Site Photos Attachment
	2439-ord
	Detention Easement Agreement
	Everbrook Academy Frankfort Revised Sign Design Package
	Everbrook Academy Frankfort - Tree Preservaton 220523 TP1 color
	ALTA-NSPS Land Title and Topographic Survey
	Site Plan
	Everbrook Academy Frankfort Revised Landscape Plan - color with photos
	Building Elevations
	Everbrook Academy Frankfort - Photometric - Modern
	22024_AS2.0_Playground Details[11]
	Everbrook Playground Equipment - Frankfort IL
	22024_AS2.1_Site Details[24]
	Material Board

	Binder1-Rhumbar
	Staff Report for PC-ZBA WORKSHOP 6-9-22
	Aerial Photo
	Site Photos Attachment - Rhumbar
	Revised Plans 4-29-22



